S R B C & CO LLP g;ﬁﬁﬂgh%gm Park, Yerwada

Chartered Accountants (Near Don Bosco School)
Pune - 411 006, India

Tel : 491 20 6603 6000
INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT
To the Members of ICC Realty (India) Private Limited

Report on the Audit of the Financial Statements
Opinion

We have audited the accompanying financial statements of ICC Realty (India) Private Limited
("the Company"), which comprise the Balance sheet as at March 31, 2023, the Statement of
Profit and Loss, including the statement of Other Comprehensive Income, the Cash Flow
Statement and the Statement of Changes in Equity for the year then ended, and notes to the
financial statements, including a summary of significant accounting policies and other
explanatory information,

In our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us,
the aforesaid financial statements give the information required by the Companies Act, 2013,
as amended (“the Act”) in the manner so required and give a true and fair view in conformity
with the accounting principles generally accepted in India, of the state of affairs of the Company
as at March 31, 2023, its profit including other comprehensive income, its cash flows and the
changes in equity for the year ended on that date.

Basis for Opinion

We conducted our audit of the financial statements in accordance with the Standards on Auditing
(SAs), as specified under section 143(10) of the Act. Our responsibilities under those Standards
are further described in the 'Auditor's Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Statements’
section of our report. We are independent of the Company in accordance with the 'Code of
Ethics’ issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India together with the ethical
requirements that are relevant to our audit of the financial statements under the provisions of
the Act and the Rules thereunder, and we have fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in
accordance with these requirements and the Code of Ethics. We believe that the audit evidence
we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our audit opinion on the
financial statements.

Other Information

The Company's Board of Directors is responsible for the other information. The other
information comprises the information included in the Board of Directors' report but does not
include the standalone financial statements and our auditor's report thereon.

Our opinion on the financial statements does not cover the other information and we do not
express any form of assurance conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the financial statements, our responsibility is to read the other
information and, in doing so, consider whether such other information is materially inconsistent
with the financial statements, or our knowledge obtained in the audit or otherwise appears to be
materially misstated. If, based on the work we have performed, we conclude that there is a
material misstatement of this other information, we are required to report that fact., We have
nothing to report in this regard.
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Responsibility of Management for the Financial Statements

The Company's Board of Directors is responsible for the matters stated in section 134(5) of the
Act with respect to the preparation of these financial statements that give a true and fair view
of the financial position, financial performance including other comprehensive income, cash
flows and changes in equity of the Company in accordance with the accounting principles
generally accepted in India, including the Indian Accounting Standards (Ind AS) specified under
section 133 of the Act read with the Companies (Indian Accounting Standards) Rules, 2015, as
amended. This responsibility also includes maintenance of adequate accounting records in
accordance with the provisions of the Act for safeguarding of the assets of the Company and for
preventing and detecting frauds and other irreqularities; selection and application of appropriate
accounting policies; making judgments and estimates that are reasonable and prudent; and the
design, implementation and maintenance of adequate internal financial controls, that were
operating effectively for ensuring the accuracy and completeness of the accounting records,
relevant to the preparation and presentation of the financial statements that give a true and fair
view and are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the financial statements, management is responsible for assessing the Company's
ability to continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern
and using the going concern basis of accounting unless management either intends to liquidate
the Company or to cease operations, or has no realistic alternative but to do so.

The Board of Directors is also responsible for overseeing the Company's financial reporting
process.

Auditor's Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements as a
whole are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an
auditor's report that includes our opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance,
but is not a gquarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with SAs will always detect a
material misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are
considered material if, individually or in the aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to
influence the economic decisions of users taken on the basis of these financial statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with SAs, we exercise professional judgment and maintain
professional skepticism throughout the audit. We also:

» ldentify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether
due to fraud or error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks, and
obtain audit evidence that is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion.
The risk of not detecting a material misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for one
resulting from error, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery, intentional omissions,
misrepresentations, or the override of internal control.

*  Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design audit
procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances. Under section 143(3)(i) of the Act,
we are also responsible for expressing our opinion on whether the Company has adequate
internal financial controls with reference to financial statements in place and the operating
effectiveness of such controls.

» Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of
accounting estimates and related disclosures made by management.
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» Conclude on the appropriateness of management's use of the going concern basis of
accounting and, based on the audit evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists
related to events or conditions that may cast significant doubt on the Company's ability to
continue as a going concern. If we conclude that a material uncertainty exists, we are
required to draw attention in our auditor's report to the related disclosures in the financial
statements or, if such disclosures are inadequate, to modify our opinion. Our conclusions
are based on the audit evidence obtained up to the date of our auditor's report. However,
future events or conditions may cause the Company to cease to continue as a going
concern.

» Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the financial statements,
including the disclosures, and whether the financial statements represent the underlying
transactions and events in a manner that achieves fair presentation.

We communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among other matters, the
planned scope and timing of the audit and significant audit findings, including any significant
deficiencies in internal control that we identify during our audit.

We also provide those charged with governance with a statement that we have complied with
relevant ethical requirements regarding independence, and to communicate with them all
relationships and other matters that may reasonably be thought to bear on our independence,
and where applicable, related safeguards.

Other Matter

The financial statements of the Company for the year ended March 31, 2022, included in these
financial statements, have been audited by the predecessor auditor who expressed an
unmodified opinion on those financial statements on May 30, 2022.

Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements

1. Asrequired by the Companies (Auditor's Report) Order, 2020 ("the Order"), issued by the
Central Government of India in terms of sub-section (11) of section 143 of the Act, we give
in the “Annexure 1" a statement on the matters specified in paragraphs 3 and 4 of the
Order.

2. Asrequired by Section 143(3) of the Act, we report that:

(@) We have sought and obtained all the information and explanations which to the best of
our knowledge and belief were necessary for the purposes of our audit;

(b) In our opinion, proper books of account as required by law have been kept by the
Company so far as it appears from our examination of those books except for Hotel
Business and Mall Operations where the backup of the books of accounts and other books
and papers, maintained in electronic mode is not maintained on servers physically
located in India and back up has not been taken on a daily basis;

(c)  The Balance Sheet, the Statement of Profit and Loss including the Statement of Other
Comprehensive Income, the Cash Flow Statement and Statement of Changes in Equity
dealt with by this Report are in agreement with the books of account;

(d) Inour opinion, the aforesaid financial statements comply with the Accounting Standards
specified under Section 133 of the Act, read with Companies (Indian Accounting
Standards) Rules, 2015, as amended;
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(e) On the basis of the written representations received from the directors as on March 31,
2023 taken on record by the Board of Directors, none of the directors is disqualified as
on March 31, 2023 from being appointed as a director in terms of Section 164 (2) of the
Act;

(f)  The observation relating to the maintenance of accounts and other matters connected
therewith are as stated in paragraph (b) above.

(g) With respect to the adequacy of the internal financial controls with reference to these
financial statements and the operating effectiveness of such controls, refer to our
separate Report in "Annexure 2" to this report;

(h)  The provisions of section 197 read with Schedule V of the Act are not applicable to the
Company for the year ended March 31, 2023;

(i)  With respect to the other matters to be included in the Auditor’'s Report in accordance
with Rule 11 of the Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014, as amended in our
opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us:

i. The Company has no pending litigations which have impact on its financial position;

ii. The Company did not have any long-term contracts including derivative contracts for
which there were any material foreseeable losses:

lii. There were no amounts which were required to be transferred to the Investor Education
and Protection Fund by the Company.

iv. a) The management has represented that, to the best of its knowledge and belief, no
funds have been advanced or loaned or invested either from borrowed funds or any other
sources or kind of funds by the Company to or in any other person(s) or entity(ies),
including foreign entities (“Intermediaries"”), with the understanding, whether recorded
in writing or otherwise, that the Intermediary shall, whether, directly or indirectly lend
or invest in other persons or entities identified in any manner whatsoever by or on behalf
of the Company (“Ultimate Beneficiaries") or provide any guarantee, security or the like
on behalf of the Ultimate Beneficiaries;

b) The management has represented that, to the best of its knowledge and belief, no
funds have been received by the Company from any person(s) or entity(ies), including
foreign entities (“Funding Parties"), with the understanding, whether recorded in writing
or otherwise, that the Company shall, whether, directly or indirectly, lend or invest in
other persons or entities identified in any manner whatsoever by or on behalf of the
Funding Party ("Ultimate Beneficiaries”) or provide any guarantee, security or the like
on behalf of the Ultimate Beneficiaries; and

¢) Based on such audit procedures performed that have been considered reasonable and
appropriate in the circumstance, nothing has come to cur notice that has caused us to
believe that the representations under sub-clause (a) and (b) contain any material
misstatement.

v. The interim dividend declared and paid by the Company during the year and until the
date of this audit report is in accordance with section 123 of the Act.
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vi. As proviso to Rule 3(1) of the Companies (Accounts) Rules, 2014 is applicable for the
Company only w.e.f. April 1, 2023, reporting under this clause is not applicable.

ForSRBC&COLLP
Chartered Accountants

ICAI Firm E?istéipiop Number: 324982E/E300003
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Place of Signature: Istanbul

Date: September 29, 2023
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Annexure 1 referred to in paragraph 1 under the heading “Report on Other Legal and
Regulatory Requirements" of our report of even date

Re: ICC Realty (India) Private Limited (the "Company")

In terms of the information and explanations sought by us and given by the company and the
books of account and records examined by us in the normal course of audit and to the best of
our knowledge and belief, we state that:

(Y (@) (A) The Company has maintained proper records showing full particulars, including

(i) (@) (B)
() (b)

(M (©

(D)

@ (e)

(i (@)

(i) (b)

quantitative details and situation of Property, Plant and Equipment and investment
property.

The Company has maintained proper records showing full particulars of intangibles assets.

The Property, Plant and Equipment and investment property have been physically verified
by the management during the year and no material discrepancies were identified on such
verification. In our opinion, the frequency of physical verification program adopted by the
company is reasonable having regard to the size of the Company and the nature of its
assets.

The title deeds of all the immovable properties (other than properties where the Company
is the lessee and the lease agreements are duly executed in favour of the lessee) disclosed
in Note 4 to the financial Statements are held in the name of the Company. Immovable
properties disclosed in Note 17 are pledged with the banks and their title deeds are not
available with the Company.

The Company has not revalued its Property, Plant and Equipment (including Right of use
assets), investment property or intangible assets during the year ended March 31, 2023.

There are no proceedings initiated or are pending against the Company for holding any
benami property under the Prohibition of Benami Property Transactions Act, 1988 and
rules made thereunder.

The management has conducted physical verification of inventory at reasonable intervals
during the year. In our opinion the coverage and the procedure of such verification by the
management is appropriate. Discrepancies of 10% or more in aggregate for each class of
inventory were not noticed on such physical verification.

The Company has not been sanctioned working capital limits in excess of Rs. five crores in
aggregate from banks or financial institutions during any point of time of the year on the
basis of security of current assets. Accordingly, the requirement to report on clause
3(i(b) of the Order is not applicable to the Company.

[THIS SPACE IS INTENTIONALLY LEFT BLANK]
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(i) (a)

(i) (b)

(i) (©)

(iii) (d)

(i) (e)

(i) (f)

During the year the Company has provided loans to companies as follows:
(Amount in Rs. Lakhs)

Guarantees | Security | Loans Advances in
nature of loans
Aggregate amount - - - -
granted/ provided
during the year

- Subsidiaries - - - -
- Joint Ventures 2
- Associates r
- Others 6,900.00
Balance outstanding as ? . .
at balance sheet date
in respect of above
cases

- Subsidiaries =
- Joint Ventures 5

- Associates -
- Others 2

During the year, the terms and conditions of all loans and advances in the nature of loans
granted by the Company are not prejudicial to the Company's interest. Further, during the
year, there are no investments made, guarantees provided and security given by the
Company.

In respect of loans granted to companies, the schedule of repayment of loan is not
stipulated and interest is repayable on demand. Hence, we are unable to make a specific
comment on the reqularity of repayment of principal and payment of interest in respect
of such loan.

There are no amounts of loans and advances in the nature of loans granted to companies,
firms, limited liability partnerships or any other parties which are overdue for more than
ninety days.

There were no loans or advance in the nature of loan granted to companies which have
fallen due during the year, that have been renewed or extended or fresh loans granted to
settle the overdues of existing loans given to the same parties.

As disclosed in note 7 to the financial statements, the Company has granted loans or
advances in the nature of loans, without specifying any terms or period of repayment to
companies. Of these following are the details of the aggregate amount of loans or
advances in the nature of loans granted to promoters or related parties as defined in
clause (76) of section 2 of the Companies Act, 2013:

(Amount in Rs. Lakhs)

All Parties Promoters Related Parties

Aggregate amount of loans/ 6,200.00 Nil 900.00
advances in nature of loans
- Repayable on demand

Percentage of loans/ advances in 100% Nil 13%

nature of loans to the total loans
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(iv)

)

(vi)

(vii) (a)

(vi)(b)

(viii)

(ix) (@)

(ix) (b)

(ix) (©)

Loans, investments, guarantees and security in respect of which provisions of sections
185 and 186 of the Companies Act, 2013 are applicable have been complied with by the
Company.

The Company has neither accepted any deposits from the public nor accepted any
amounts which are deemed to be deposits within the meaning of sections 73 to 76 of the
Companies Act and the rules made thereunder, to the extent applicable. Accordingly, the
requirement to report on clause 3(v) of the Order is not applicable to the Company.

The Company is not in the business of sale of any goods or provision of such services as
prescribed. Accordingly, the requirement to report on clause 3(vi) of the Order is not
applicable to the Company.

Undisputed statutory dues including goods and services tax, provident fund, employees'’
state insurance, professional tax, income-tax, duty of customs, Maharashtra value added
tax, and other statutory dues have generally been regularly deposited with the appropriate
authorities though there has been a slight delay in a few cases.

According to the information and explanations given to us and based on audit procedures
performed by us, no undisputed amounts payable in respect of these statutory dues were
outstanding, at the year end, for a period of more than six months from the date they
became payable.

The dues of goods and services tax, provident fund, employees' state insurance, income-
tax, sales-tax, service tax, value added tax, cess, and other statutory dues have not been
deposited on account of any dispute, are as follows:

Name of the | Nature | Amount Period to | Forum where | Remarks, if
statute of the | (Rs in | which  the | the dispute is | any
dues lakhs) amount pending
relates
Maharashtra | Value 29.14 | April 2014 - | Joint Amount paid
Value Added | Added March 2015 | Commissioner | under protest
Tax, 2002 Tax of Sales Tax|is Rs. 11.62
(Appeals) lakhs
Income Tax | Income 51.29 | April 2019 - | Commissioner | Amount paid
Act 1961 Tax March 2020 | of Income Tax | under protest
(CIT) Appeal is Rs. Nil

The Company has not surrendered or disclosed any transaction, previously unrecorded in
the books of account, in the tax assessments under the Income Tax Act, 1961 as income
during the year. Accordingly, the requirement to report on clause 3(viii) of the Order is
not applicable to the Company.

The Company has not defaulted in repayment of loans or other borrowings or in the
payment of interest thereon to any lender during the year.

The Company has not been declared wilful defaulter by any bank or financial institution or
government or any government authority.

Term loans were applied for the purpose for which the loans were obtained.
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() (d)

(ix) (e)

(ix) (F)

) (@)

) (b)

(xi) (a)

(xi) (b)

(xi) (©)

(xii)

(xiii)

(xiv) (a)

(xiv) (b)

(xv)

(xvi) (a)

On an overall examination of the financial statements of the Company, no funds raised on
short-term basis have been used for long-term purposes by the Company.

The Company does not have any subsidiary, associate or joint venture. Accordingly, the
requirement to report on clause 3(ix)(e) of the Order is not applicable to the Company.

The Company does not have any subsidiary, associate or joint venture, Accordingly, the
requirement to repert on Clause 3(ix)(f) of the Order is not applicable to the Company.

The Company has not raised any meney during the year by way of initial public offer /
further public offer (including debt instruments) hence, the requirement to report on
clause 3(x)(a) of the Order is not applicable to the Company.

The Company has not made any preferential allotment or private placement of shares
/fully or partially or optionally convertible debentures during the year under audit and
hence, the requirement to report on clause 3(x)(b) of the Order is not applicable to the
Company.

No fraud by the Company or no fraud on the Company has been noticed or reported during
the year.

During the year, no report under sub-section (12) of section 143 of the Companies Act,
2013 has been filed by cost auditor/ secretarial auditor or by us in Form ADT - 4 as
prescribed under Rule 13 of Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014 with the Central
Government.

As represented to us by the management, there are no whistle blower complaints received
by the Company during the year.

The Company is not a Nidhi Company as per the provisions of the Companies Act, 2013.
Therefore, the requirement to report on clause 3(xii(a), 3(xii)(b) and 3(xii)c) of the Order
is not applicable to the Company.

Transactions with the related parties are in compliance with sections 188 of Companies
Act, 2013 where applicable and the details have been disclosed in the notes to the financial
statements, as required by the applicable accounting standards. The provisions of section
177 are not applicable to the Company and accordingly the requirements to report under
clause 3(xiii) of the Order insofar as it relates to section 177 of the Act is not applicable
to the Company.

The Company has an internal audit system commensurate with the size and nature of its
business.

The internal audit reports of the Company issued till the date of the audit report, for the
period under audit have been considered by us.

The Company has not entered into any non-cash transactions with its directors or persons
connected with its directors and hence requirement to report on clause 3(xv) of the Order
is not applicable to the Company.

The provisions of section 45-1A of the Reserve Bank of India Act, 1934 (2 of 1934) are not
applicable to the Company. Accordingly, the requirement to report on clause (xvi)(a) of
the Order is not applicable to the Company.




SRBC&CO LLP

Chartered Accountants

(xvi) (b)

(xvi) (©)

(xvi) ()

(xvii)

(xviii)

(xix)

(xx) (a)

(xx) (b)

The Company is not engaged in any Non-Banking Financial or Housing Finance activities.
Accordingly, the requirement to report on clause (xvi)(b) of the Order is not applicable to
the Company.

The Company is not a Core Investment Company as defined in the requlations made by
Reserve Bank of India. Accordingly, the requirement to report on clause 3(xvi) of the Order
is not applicable to the Company.

The Group has one Unregistered Core Investment Company as part of the Group.

The Company has not incurred cash losses in the current year and in the immediately
preceding financial year respectively.

There has been no resignation of the statutory auditors during the year and accordingly
requirement to report on Clause 3(xviii) of the Order is not applicable to the Company.

On the basis of the financial ratios disclosed in Note 42 to the financial statements, ageing
and expected dates of realization of financial assets and payment of financial liabilities,
other information accompanying the financial statements, our knowledge of the Board of
Directors and management plans and based on our examination of the evidence
supporting the assumptions, nothing has come to our attention, which causes us to believe
that any material uncertainty exists as on the date of the audit report that Company is not
capable of meeting its liabilities existing at the date of balance sheet as and when they fall
due within a period of one year from the balance sheet date. We, however, state that this
is not an assurance as to the future viability of the Company. We further state that our
reporting is based on the facts up to the date of the audit report and we neither give any
guarantee nor any assurance that all liabilities falling due within a period of one year from
the balance sheet date, will get discharged by the Company as and when they fall due.

In respect of other than ongoing projects, there are no unspent amounts that are required
to be transferred to a fund specified in Schedule VII of the Companies Act (the Act), in
compliance with second proviso to sub section 5 of section 135 of the Act. This matter
has been disclosed in Note 27.02 to the financial statements.

There are no unspent amounts in respect of ongoing projects, that are required to be
transferred to a special account in compliance of provision of sub section (6) of section
135 of Companies Act. This matter has been disclosed in Note 27.02 to the financial
statements.

For SRBC&COLLP
Chartered ountants
ICAI Fifrm Reglstratjes”Number: 324982E/E300003
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Annexure 2 To The Independent Auditor's Report of Even Date On The Financial Statements
of ICC Realty (India) Private Limited

Report on the Internal Financial Controls under Clause (i) of Sub-section 3 of Section 143 of
the Companies Act, 2013 ("the Act™)

We have audited the internal financial controls over financial reporting of ICC Realty (India)
Private Limited ("the Company") as of March 31, 2023 in conjunction with our audit of the
financial statements of the Company for the year ended on that date.

Management's Responsibility for Internal Financial Controls

The Company's Management is responsible for establishing and maintaining internal financial
controls based on the internal control over financial reporting criteria established by the
Company considering the essential components of internal control stated in the Guidance Note
on Audit of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting issued by the Institute of
Chartered Accountants of India. These responsibilities include the design, implementation and
maintenance of adequate internal financial controls that were operating effectively for ensuring
the orderly and efficient conduct of its business, including adherence to the Company's policies,
the safeguarding of its assets, the prevention and detection of frauds and errors, the accuracy
and completeness of the accounting records, and the timely preparation of reliable financial
information, as required under the Companies Act, 2013.

Auditor's Responsibility

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on the Company's internal financial controls over
financial reporting based on our audit. We conducted our audit in accordance with the Guidance
Note on Audit of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting (the “Guidance Note") and
the Standards on Auditing as specified under section 143(10) of the Companies Act, 2013, to
the extent applicable to an audit of internal financial controls, both issued by the Institute of
Chartered Accountants of India. Those Standards and the Guidance Note require that we comply
with ethical requirements and plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about
whether adequate internal financial controls over financial reporting was established and
maintained and if such controls operated effectively in all material respects.

Our audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the adequacy of the
internal financial controls system over financial reporting and their operating effectiveness. Our
audit of internal financial controls over financial reporting included obtaining an understanding
of internal financial controls over financial reporting, assessing the risk that a material weakness
exists, and testing and evaluating the design and operating effectiveness of internal control
based on the assessed risk. The procedures selected depend on the auditor's judgement,
including the assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements,
whether due to fraud or error.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a
basis for our audit opinion on the internal financial controls system over financial reporting with
reference to these financial statements.
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Meaning of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting

A company's internal financial control over financial reporting is a process designed to provide
reasonable assurance regarding the reliability of financial reporting and the preparation of
financial statements for external purposes in accordance with generally accepted accounting
principles. A company's internal financial control over financial reporting includes those policies
and procedures that (1) pertain to the maintenance of records that, in reasonable detail,
accurately and fairly reflect the transactions and dispositions of the assets of the company; (2)
provide reasonable assurance that transactions are recorded as necessary to permit preparation
of financial statements in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles, and that
receipts and expenditures of the company are being made only in accordance with
authorisations of management and directors of the company; and (3) provide reasonable
assurance regarding prevention or timely detection of unauthorised acquisition, use, or
disposition of the company's assets that could have a material effect on the financial statements.

Inherent Limitations of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting with Reference
to these Financial Statements

Because of the inherent limitations of internal financial controls over financial reporting with
reference to these financial statements, including the possibility of collusion or improper
management override of controls, material misstatements due to error or fraud may occur and
not be detected. Also, projections of any evaluation of the internal financial controls over
financial reporting with reference to these financial statements to future periods are subject to
the risk that the internal financial control over financial reporting with reference to these
financial statements may become inadequate because of changes in conditions, or that the
degree of compliance with the policies or procedures may deteriorate.

Opinion

In our opinion, the Company has, in all material respects, an adequate internal financial controls
system over financial reporting with reference to these financial statements and such internal
financial controls over financial reporting with reference to these financial statements were
operating effectively as at March 31, 2023, based on the internal control over financial
reporting criteria established by the Company considering the essential compenents of internal
control stated in the Guidance Note on Audit of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial
Reporting issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India.

ForSRBC&COLLP
Chartered Accountants
ICAI Firm Registration Number: 324982E/E300003
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Place of Signature: Istanbul
Date: September 29, 2023




ICC Realty (India) Private Limited
Balance sheet as at March 31, 2023
{All amounts are in Rs. lakhs, unless otherwise stated)

The accompanying notes are an Integral part of the financial statements.

As per our report of even date.

ForSRBC&CO LLP
Chartered Accquntants

Mambiership no. 136969
Place: Istanbul
Date : September 29, 2023

For and on behalf of the Board of Directors of
ICC Realty (India) Private Limited

Atul Chordia

Director

DiN: 00054998

Place: Bangkak

Date : September 29, 2023

Resham Atul Chordia
Director

DIN: 06652039

Place: Bangkok

Date : September 29, 2023

Notes As at March 31, 2023 As at March 31, 2022
Assets
Non-current assets
Property, plant and equipment 44 17,235.73 18,194.24
Capital work-in-progress 48 866.13 853.74
Investment properties 5 34,076.65 35,608.91
Intangible assets 7 1.60 1.60|
Right-of-use assets 44 5,824,568 6,250.82
Investment properties under development 6 108.38 31.46
58,111.19 50,941.73‘
Financial assets
Other financial assets 8 785.04 909.15
Income tax assets (net) 9 1,549.53 2,383,749
Other non-current assets 10 1,378.91 1,142.34
3,713.48 4,435.23
Current assets
Inventories 11 396,16 283.36
Financial assets
Investments 12 4,847.18 1,000,13
Trade receivables 13 2,395.70 1,990.03
Cash and cash equivalents 144 2,253.89 1,596.47
Other bank balances 148 3,677.99 10,304.58
Other financial assets 8 1,237.87 499.86
Other current assets 10 1,295.92) 1,440.08
16,104.71 17,114.51
Total assets 77,929.38| B2,491.52,
Equity and liabilities
Equity
Equity share capital 15 1,044.40] 1,071.40
Other equity 16 15,732.80 20,437.34
16,777.20 21,508.74
Non-current liabilities
Financial Liabilities
Borrowings 17 41,211.23 36,911.22
Lease liability i8 5,738.79 5,864.86
Other financial liabilities 19 3,756.91 2,663.61
Provisions 22 176,00 134.08
Other non-current liabilities 21 6536.28 540.36
51,519.21 46,114.13
Current lizbilities
Financial liabilities
Borrowings 17 1,305.50 4,988.77
Lease [fability 18 126.07 117.46
Trade payables
- Total outstanding dues of micro enterprises and small enterprises 20 187.285 140.97
- Total outstanding dues of creditors other than micro enterprises 20 2,169.16 3,191.81
and small enterprises
Other financial liabilities 19 4,392.06 4,778.29
Provisions 22 63.93 54.54
Other current liahilities 21 1,388.99 1,596.80
9,632.97 14,868.64
TOTAL 77,925.38)
Summary of significant accounting policies 2

Simran Saluja

Company Secratary
MRN-AS4T767

Place: Pune

Date : September 29, 2023




ICC Realty (India) Private Limited

Statement of profit and loss for the year ended March 31, 2023
{All amounts are in Rs. lakhs, unless otherwise i)
Notes Year ended Year ended
March 31, 2023 March 31, 2022
Income
Revenue from operations 23 43,081.32 22,816.96
Other income 24 1,084.07 833.48
Total income (1) 44,175.39 23,750.44
Expenses
Cost of raw material and components consumed 25 3,301.86 1,564.81
Cost of construction material sold 25 14.18 21.86
Emplayee benefits expense 26 2,979.23 2,450.72
Other expenses 27 12,870.93) 7,253.42
Total expenses (I} 19,166.30 11,290.81
Earnings before interest, tax, depreciation and amortisation 25,009.09 12,459.63
(EBITDA) (1) - (1)
Finance costs 29 4,158.70 4,060.75
Depreciation and amortisation expense 28 4,931.53 4,796.29
9,090.23 B,857.04
Profit before tax 15,918.86 3,602,59
Tax expenses:
Current tax 31 2,791.48 1,173.10
MAT credit entitlement - (517.62)
Adjustment of tax relating to earlier periods 0.14 4.00
Total tax expenses 2,791.62 655.48
Profit for the year 13,127.24 2,943.11
Other comprehensive income
Other comprehensive Income not to be reclassified to profit or loss in
subsequent periods :
Re-measurement (losses) / gains on defined benefit plans (9.29) 34.73
Income tax effect 2,10 (7.85)
Net other comprehensive income not to be reclassified to profit or loss in (7.19) 26.88|
subsequent periods (net of tax}
Total comprehensive income for the year, net of tax 13,120.05 2,969.95
Earnings per equity share
EPS basic and diluted (in Rs.) 30 123.63 27.47
Summary of significant accounting policies -
The accompanying notes are an integral part of the financial statements.
As per our report of even date,
ForSRB CECOLLP For and on behalf of the Board of Directors of
Charteraed Accountants ICC Realty (India) Private Limited
ICAIFirm Regi rano@wd,’iiasszuanmm
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tafa Saleem Atul Chordia Resham Atul Chordia Simran Saluja
Director Director Company Secretary
Membership no. 136969 DIN: DOO54998 DIN: 06652039 MRN-AS4767
Place: |stanbul Place: Bangkok Place: Banghkaok Place: Pune
Date : 5eptember 29, 2023 Date : September 29, 2023 Date : September 29, 2023 Date : September 29, 2023




ICC Realty (India) Private Limited
Cash flow statement for the year ended March 31, 2023
(All amounts are in Rs. lakhs, unless otherwise stated}

Year ended Year ended

March 31, 2023 March 31, 2022
A. Cash flows from operating activities
Profit before tax 15,918.86 3,602.59
Adjustments for:
Depreciation and amortisation 4,931.53 4,780.87
Liabilities no langer required written back {12.07) (10.28)
(Profit)/Loss on sale or discarded plant property equipment (5.86) 25,15
Profit on sale of current investment (89.61) (35.13)
Fair value gain on current investment (44.41) (0.13)
Impairment allowance for (Provision for doubtful) receivables and advances 40.28 65.30
Advances written off 5.44 0.01
Finance costs 4,158,70 4,060.75
Interest income (430.38) (337.27)
Operating profit before working capital changes 24,472.48 12,151.91
Movements in working capital :
Increase in inter-corporate deposits loans - (2.50)
Increase in other non current assets {326.85) (76.86)
{Increase) / decrease in inventories (112.80) 28.13
Increase in trade receivables (445.95) (87.69)
(Increase) / decrease in other current financial assets (9.75) 0,23
Increase in other non current financial assets (13.96) (13.11)
Decrease / (increase) in other current assets 144.16 (417.51)
{Decrease) / increase in trade payables (964.31) 1,352.24
Increase in other non-current financial liabilities 1,189.22 1,541.28
Decrease in other current financial liabilities (289.05) (142.08)
(Decrease) / increase in other current liabilities (207.81) 340.03
Decrease in lease liability (117.46) -
Increase in provisions 42.02 49.66
Cash generated from operations 23,359.94 14,723.33
Direct taxes paid (net of refunds) (1,955.31) (1,319.85)
Net cash flow generated from operating activities (A) 21,404.63 13,403.48
B. Cash flows from investing activities
Purchase towards purchase of property, plant and equipment (1,661.11) (2,239.19)
Purchase towards investment property (467.91) -
Proceeds from sale of property, plant and equipment 27.04 8132
Investment in units of mutual funds (20,820.00) (7,715.00)
Proceeds from sale of mutual funds 17,106.97 7,753.37
Proceeds received from maturity of fixed deposit 5,980.45 -
Investment in fixed deposit - (2,662.34)
Interest received 430.89 305.44
Proceeds from repayment of inter-corporate deposits 6,900.00 -
Loans given in the form of inter-corporate deposits (6,900.00) -
Net cash flow generated from / (used) in investing activities (B) 646.33 (4,476.40)
C. Cash flows from financing activities
Buy back of equity share capital (6,805,08) -
Proceeds from long-term borrowings 43,000.00 -
Repayment of long-term barrowings (40,613.97) (3,830.25)
Tax on buy back of shares (1,376.45) -
Dividend paid (9,670.06) -
Interest paid (5,927.98) (4,625.18)
Proceeds from inter-corporate deposits 9,700.00 -
Repayment of inter-corporate depasits (9,700.00) -
Net cash flow (used) in financing activities (C) {21,393.55) (8,455.43)




ICC Realty (India) Private Limited
Cash flow statement for the year ended March 31, 2023
(All amounts are in Rs, lakhs, unless otherwise stated)

Year ended Year ended
March 31, 2023 March 31, 2022

Net increase in cash and cash equivalents {A + B + C) 657.42 471.64
Cash and cash equivalents at the beginning of the year 1,596.47 1,124.83
Cash and cash equivalents at the end of the year 2,253.89 1,596.47
Cash and cash equivalents include

Balances with banks 2,248.04 1,589.05
Cash on hand 5.85 7.42
Total cash and cash equivalents (refer note 14A) 2,253.89 1,596.47

The accompanying notes are an integral part of the financial statements.

As per our report of even date.

ForSRB C&COLLP For and on behalf of the Board of Directors of
Chartered Accountants ICC Realty (India) Private Limited

’
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Atul Chordia Resham Atul Chordia Simran Saluja

Director Director Company Secretary
Membership no. 136969 DIN: 00054998 DIN; 06652039 MRN-A54767
Place: Istanbul Place: Bangkok Place: Bangkok Place: Pune

Date : September 29, 2023 Date : September 29, 2023 Date : September 29, 2023  Date : September 29, 2023



ICC Realty (India) Private Limited
Statement of changes in equity for the Year ended March 31, 2023
(All amounts are in Rs. lakhs, unless otherwise stated)

A. Equity share capital

Equity shares of Rs. 10 each issued, subscribed and fully No. of Shares Amount

paid-up ’

As at April 1, 2021 1,07,14,000.00 1,071.40
Changes during the year* - )
As at March 31, 2022 1,07,14,000.00 1,071.40
As at April 1, 2022 1,07,14,000.00 1,071.40
Buyback of shares (refer note 15} (2,70,043.00) (27.00}
As at March 31, 2023 1,04,43,957.00 1,044.40

* There are no changes in equity share capital due to prior period errors.

B. Other equity As at March 31, 2023

Reserves and surplus Other Reserve
Securities premium Retained earnings Capital redemption Total
reserve
Balance as at April 1, 2022 15,102.73 4,971.58 363.03 20,437.34
Profit for the year - 13,127.24 - 13,127.24
Other comprehensive income - (7.19) - (7.19)
Total comprehensive income - 13,120.05 - 13,120.05
Less :Transferred to capital redemption reserve (27.00) - 27.00 -
Less: Utilised towards buy back of shares (refer note (6,778.08) E - (6,778.08)
15)
Less: Tax on buy back of shares (refer note 15) - (1,376.45) - (1,376.45)
Less: Utilised for Dividend (refer note 15) - (9,670.06) - (9,670.06)
Balance as at March 31, 2023 8,297.65 7,045.12 390.03 15,732.80
B. Other equity As at March 31, 2022
Reserves and surplus Other Reserve
Securities premium Retained earnings Capital redemption Total
reserve
Balance as at April 1, 2021 15,102.73 2,001.59 363.03 17,467.35
Profit for the year - 2,943.11 - 284311
Other comprehensive expenses - 26.88 - 26.88
Total comprehensive income = 2,969.99 - 2,969.99
Balance as at March 31, 2022 15,102.73 4,971.58 363.03 20,437.34
The accompanying notes are an integral part of the financial statements.
As per our report of even date.
ForSRBC&COLLP For and on behalf of the Board of Directors of
Chartered Accountants ICC Realty (India) Private Limited
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Director Director Company Secretary
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Date : September 23, 2023 Date : September 29, 2023 Date : September 29, 2023 Date : September 29, 2023




ICC Realty (India) Private Limited

Notes to financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2023

1

2.1

Corporate information

ICC Realty (India) Private Limited (“the Company”) is a private limited company domiciled in India and was
incorporated on February 12, 2002 under the provisions of the Companies Act, 1956 engaged in the business of leasing
of commercial spaces, operation of a retail mall, operation of a commercial hotel and operation of windmills. Its
registered and principal office of business is located at Tech Park One, Tower 'E', Next to Don Bosco School, Off Airport
Road, Yerwada, Pune, MH-411006.

The financial statements were authorized for issue in accordance with a resolution of the Board of Directors on
September 29, 2023.

Basis of preparation

The financial statements of the Company have been prepared in accordance with Indian Accounting Standards (Ind AS)
notified under the Companies (Indian Accounting Standards) Rules, 2015 (as amended from time to time) and
presentation requirements of Division Il of Schedule il to the Companies Act, 2013 (Ind AS compliant Schedule |11).

The financial statements have been prepared on a historical cost basis, except for certain financial instruments which
have been measured at fair value or revalued amount at the end of each reporting period.

The financial statements are presented in INR and all values are rounded to the nearest lakhs (Rs. 00,000), except when
otherwise indicated.

Summary of significant accounting policies
(a) Current versus non-current classification
The Company presents assets and liabilities in the balance sheet based on current/ non-current classification.

An asset is treated as current when it is:
e Expected to be realised or intended to be sold or consumed in normal operating cycle
e  Held primarily for the purpaose of trading
e  Expected to be realised within twelve months after the reporting period, or
e Cash or cash equivalent unless restricted from being exchanged or used to settle a liability for at least twelve
months after the reporting period

All other assets are classified as non-current.

A liability is treated as current liability when either:
e |tis expected to be settled in normal operating cycle
e |tis held primarily for the purpose of trading
e |tis due to be settled within twelve months after the reporting period, or
e There is no uhconditional right to defer the settlement of the liability for at least twelve months after the
reporting period

The terms of the liability that could, at the option of the counterparty, result in its settlement by the issue of equity
instruments do not affect its classification.

All other liabilities are classified as non-current. Deferred tax assets and liabilities are classified as non-current assets
and liabilities.

The operating cycle is the time between the acquisition of assets for processing and their realisation in cash and cash
equivalents. The Company has identified twelve months as its operating cycle.




IEC Realty (India) Private Limited

Notes to financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2023

(b) Foreign currencies
Transactions and balances

Transactions in foreign currencies are initially recorded by the Company at the functional currency spot rates at the
date the transaction first qualifies for recognition.

Monetary assets and liabilities denominated in foreign currencies are translated at the functional currency spot rates
of exchange at the reporting date. Exchange differences arising on settlement or translation of monetary items are
recognised in profit or loss.

Non-monetary items that are measured in terms of historical cost in a foreign currency are translated using the
exchange rates at the dates of the initial transactions. Non-monetary items measured at fair value in a foreign
currency are translated using the exchange rates at the date when the fair value is determined. The gain or loss arising
on translation of non-monetary items measured at fair value is treated in line with the recognition of the gain or loss
on the change in fair value of the item (i.e., translation differences on items whose fair value gain or loss is recognised
in OClI or profit or loss are also recognised in OCI or profit or loss, respectively).

In determining the spot exchange rate to use on initial recognition of the related asset, expense or income (or part of
it) on the derecognition of a non-monetary asset or non-monetary liability relating to advance consideration, the date
of the transaction is the date on which the Company initially recognises the non-monetary asset or non-monetary
liability arising from the advance consideration. If there are multiple payments or receipts in advance, the Company
determines the transaction date for each payment or receipt of advance consideration.

(c) Fair value measurement

The Company measures financial instruments, such as, investments in mutual funds at fair value at each balance sheet
date. Fair-value related disclosures for financial instruments and non-financial assets that are measured at fair value
or where fair values are disclosed, are disclosed in note 38.

Fair value is the price that would be received to sell an asset or paid to transfer a liability in an orderly transaction
between market participants at the measurement date. The fair value measurement is based on the presumption
that the transaction to sell the asset or transfer the liability takes place either:

e in the principal market for the asset or liability. Or

e inthe absence of a principal market, in the most advantageous market for the asset or liability.
The principal or the most advantageous market must be accessible by the Company.
The fair value of an asset or a liability is measured using the assumptions that market participants would use when
pricing the asset or liability, assuming that market participants act in their economic best interest.

A fair value measurement of a non-financial asset takes into account a market participant’s ability to generate
economic benefits by using the asset in its highest and best use or by selling it to another market participant that
would use the asset in its highest and best use.

The Company uses valuation techniques that are appropriate in the circumstances and for which sufficient data are
available to measure fair value, maximising the use of relevant observable inputs and minimising the use of
unobservable inputs.

All assets and liabilities for which fair value is measured or disclosed in the financial statements are categorised within
the fair value hierarchy, described as follows, based on the lowest level input that is significant to the fair value
measurement as a whole:
e Level 1 — Quoted (unadjusted) market prices in active markets for identical assets or liabilities
o Level 2 — Valuation techniques for which the lowest level input that is significant to the fair value
measurement is directly or indirectly observable
o Llevel 3 — Valuation techniques for which the lowest level input that is significant to the fair value
measurement is unobservable :

sbher transfers have occurred between levels in the hierarchy by re-assessing categorisation (based o
el put that is significant to the fair value measurement as a whole) at the end of each reporting perj




ICC Realty (India) Private Limited

Notes to financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2023

The Company’s management determines the policies and procedures for both recurring fair value measurement, such
unquoted financial assets measured at fair value and for non-recurring measurement, such as non-current assets held
for sale.

External valuers are involved for valuation of significant assets and liabilities such as investment property.
Involvement of external valuers is decided upon annually by the management. Selection criteria include market
knowledge, reputation, independence and whether professional standards are maintained.

For the purpose of fair value disclosures, the Company has determined classes of assets and liabilities on the basis of
the nature, characteristics and risks of the asset or liability and the level of the fair value hierarchy as explained above.

This note summarizes accounting policy for fair value. Other fair value related disclosures are given in the relevant
notes

- Significant accounting judgements, estimates and assumptions

- Quantitative disclosures of fair value measurement hierarchy

- Investment properties

- Financial instruments (including those carried at amortised cost)

(d) Revenue from operations

Revenue from operations is recognised when control of the goods or services are transferred to the customer at an
amount that reflects the consideration to which the Company expects to be entitled in exchange for those goods or
services. The Company has generally concluded that it is the principal in its revenue arrangements, because it typically
controls the goods or services before transferring them to the customer.

Rental income from investment property

Rental income from property leased under operating lease is recognized in the income statement on a straight-line
basis over the term of the lease. The lease term is the non-cancellable period together with any further term for which
the tenant has the option to continue the lease, where, at the inception of the lease, the Company is reasonably certain
that the tenant will exercise that option. The Company collects Goods and service tax on behalf of the government and
therefore, it is not an economic benefit flowing to the Company. Hence, it is excluded from revenue. Contingent rents
if any are recognized as revenue in the period in which they are earned.

Revenue from contracts with customers
{i} Hotel Operations

Rooms, Food, Beverage and other allied hotel services including banquet services:

Revenue is recognized at the transaction price that is allocated to the performance obligation. Revenue
includes room revenue, food and beverage sale and banquet services which is recognized once the rooms
are occupied, food and beverages are sold and banquet services have been provided as per the contract with
the customer. In relation to other allied hotel services, the revenue has been recognized by reference to the
time of service rendered.

(i) Commercial leasing and mall operations

Maintenance and parking charges:

Maintenance and service charges arising from operating leases are recognized as and when the services are
rendered. The Company collects goods and service tax on behalf of the government and, therefore, these
are not economic benefits flowing to the Company. Hence, they are excluded from revenue.

Sale of construction material, including fitout sale:
Revenue from sale of construction materials is recognized when control of the goods have been transferred
to the customer. The Company collects goods and service tax on behalf of the government and, therefore,
these are not economic benefits flowing to the Company. Hence, they are excluded from revenu




ICC Realty (India) Private Limited
Notes to financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2023

Variable Consideration:

If the consideration in a contract includes a variable amount (like volume rebates/incentives, cash discounts
etc.), the Company estimates the amount of consideration to which it will be entitled in exchange for
rendering the services to the customer. The variable consideration is estimated at contract inception and
constrained until itis highly probable that a significant revenue reversal in the amount of cumulative revenue
recognized will not occur when the associated uncertainty with the variable consideration is subsequently
resolved. The estimate of variable consideration for expected future volume rebates/incentives, cash
discounts etc. are made on the most likely amount method. Revenue is disclosed net of such amounts.

Contract balances

Trade receivables

A receivable represents the Campany’s right to an amount of consideration that is unconditional (i.e., only
the passage of time is required before payment of the consideration is due). Refer to section (p) Financial
instruments — measured at amortised cost.

Contract liabilities

A contract liability is the obligation to render services to a customer for which the Company has received
consideration {or an amount of consideration is due) from the customer. If a customer pays consideration
before the Company renders services to the customer, a contract liability is recognized when the payment
is made. Contract liabilities are recognized as revenue when the Company performs under the contract.

Refund liabilities

A refund liability is the obligation to refund some or all the consideration received (or receivable) from the
customer and is measured at the amount the Company ultimately expects it will have to return to the
customer. The Company updates its estimates of refund liabilities (and the corresponding change in the
transaction price) at the end of each reporting period.

(iii) Windmill Operations
Revenue from windmill operations is recognized at a point in time when the electricity generated has been
transferred to the customer.

(iv) Other operating revenue
Other operating revenue arising from operating lease is recognized as and when the services are rendered and
are shown net of expenses e.g. water charges.

{e) Taxes
Current income tax

Current income tax assets and liabilities are measured at the amount expected to be recovered from or paid to the
taxation authorities; on the basis of the taxable profits computed for the current accounting period in accordance
with Income Tax Act, 1961. The tax rates and tax laws used to compute the amount are those that are enacted or
substantively enacted at the reporting date.

Current income tax relating to items recognised outside profit or loss is recognised outside profit or loss (either in
other comprehensive income or in equity). Current tax items are recognised in correlation to the underlying
transaction either in OC| or directly in equity. Management periodically evaluates positions taken in the tax returns
with respect to situations in which applicable tax regulations are subject to interpretation and establishes provisions
where appropriate.

Deferred tax

Deferred tax is provided using the liability method on temporary differences between the tax bases of assets and
liabilities and their carrying amounts for financial reporting purposes at the reporting date.

¢ 80X




ICC Realty (India) Private Limited
Notes to financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2023

(f)

Deferred tax liabilities are recognised for all taxable temporary differences, except:

®  When the deferred tax liability arises from the initial recognition of goodwill or an asset or liability in a
transaction that is not a business combination and, at the time of the transaction, affects neither the
accounting profit nor taxahble profit or loss

@ In respect of taxable temporary differences associated with investments in subsidiaries, associates and
interests in joint ventures, when the timing of the reversal of the temporary differences can be controlled and
it is probable that the temporary differences will not reverse in the foreseeable future

Deferred tax assets are recognised for all deductible temporary differences, the carry forward of unused tax credits
and any unused tax losses. Deferred tax assets are recognised to the extent that it is probable that taxable profit
will be available against which the deductible temporary differences, and the carry forward of unused tax credits
and unused tax losses can be utilised, except:

e When the deferred tax asset relating to the deductible temporary difference arises from the initial recognition
of an asset or liability in a transaction that is not a business combination and, at the time of the transaction,
affects neither the accounting profit nor taxable profit or loss

e In respect of deductible temporary differences associated with investments in subsidiaries, associates and
interests in joint ventures, deferred tax assets are recognised only to the extent that it is probable that the
temporary differences will reverse in the foreseeable future and taxable profit will be available against which
the temporary differences can be utilized

The carrying amount of deferred tax assets is reviewed at each reporting date and reduced to the extent that it is
no longer probable that sufficient taxable profit will be available to allow all or part of the deferred tax asset to be
utilised. Unrecognised deferred tax assets are re-assessed at each reporting date and are recognised to the extent
that it has become probable that future taxable profits will allow the deferred tax asset to be recovered.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are measured at the tax rates that are expected to apply in the year when the
asset is realised or the liability is settled, based on tax rates {and tax laws) that have been enacted or substantively
enacted at the reporting date.

Deferred tax relating to items recognised outside profit or loss is recognised outside profit or loss (either in other
comprehensive income or in equity). Deferred tax items are recognised in correlation to the underlying transaction
either in OCI or directly in equity.

Deferred tax assets and deferred tax liabilities are offset if a legally enforceable right exists to set off current tax
assets against current tax liabilities and the deferred taxes relate to the same taxable entity and the same taxation
authority.

Property, plant and equipment and capital work in progress

The Company has opted to disclose the previous GAAP (Indian GAAP) carrying value of property, plant and
equipment as the deemed cost under Ind AS as at April 01, 2017.

Property, plant and equipment, capital work-in progress are stated at cost, net of accumulated depreciation and
accumulated impairment losses, if any. The cost comprises the purchase price, borrowing costs if recognition
criteria are met and directly attributable-cost of bringing the asset to its working condition for the intended use.

When significant parts of property, plant and equipment are required to be replaced at intervals, the Company
depreciates them separately based on their specific useful lives. Likewise, when a major inspection is performed,
its cost is recognised in the carrying amount of the property, plant and equipment as a replacement if the
recognition criteria are satisfied. All other repair and maintenance costs are recognised in the statement of profit
or loss as incurred. CWIP comprises of cost of property plant and equipment that are not yet ready for intended use
as at balance sheet date.




ICC Realty (India) Private Limited
Notes to financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2023

(g

(h)

(i)

—

An item of property, plant and equipment and any significant part initially recognised is de-recognised upon
disposal or when no future economic benefits are expected from its use or disposal. Any gain or loss arising on de-
recognition of the asset (calculated as the difference between the net disposal proceeds and the carrying amount
of the asset) is included in the statement of profit and loss when the asset is de-recognised.

The residual values, useful lives and methods of depreciation of property, plant and equipment are reviewed at
each financial year end and adjusted prospectively, if appropriate.

Investment property

The Company has opted to disclose the previous GAAP (Indian GAAP) carrying value of investment property as the
deemed cost under Ind AS as at April 01, 2017.

Investment properties are measured initially at cost, including transaction costs. Subsequent to initial recognition,
investment properties are stated at cost less accumulated depreciation and accumulated impairment loss, if any.

The cost includes the cost of replacing parts and borrowing costs for long-term construction projects if the
recognition criteria are met. When significant parts of the investment property are required to be replaced at
intervals, the Company depreciates them separately based on their specific useful lives. All other repair and
maintenance costs are recognized in the statement of profit or loss as incurred.

Though the Company measures investment property using cost based measurement, the fair value of investment
property is disclosed in the notes. Fair values are determined based on an annual evaluation performed by an
accredited external independent valuer.

Investment properties are de-recognised either when they have been disposed of or when they are permanently
withdrawn from use and no future economic benefit is expected from their disposal. The difference between the
net disposal proceeds and the carrying amount of the asset is recognised in the statement of profit or loss in the
period of de-recognition.

Transfers are made to (or from) investment properties only when there is a change in use. Transfers between
investment property, owner-occupied property and inventories do not change the carrying amount of the property
transferred and they do not change the cost of that property for measurement or disclosure purposes.

Intangible Assets

Intangible assets acquired separately are measured on initial recognition at cost. Following initial recognition,
intangible assets are carried at cost less accumulated amortisation and accumulated impairment losses, if any.

Intangible assets with finite useful lives are amortised over their useful economic lives and assessed for
impairment whenever there is an indication that the intangible asset may be impaired. The amortisation period
and the amortisation method for an intangible asset with a finite useful life are reviewed at least at the end of
each reporting period. The amortisation expense on intangible assets with finite lives is recognised in the
statement of profit and loss in the expense category consistent with the function of the intangible assets.

An intangible asset is derecognised upon disposal (i.e., at the date the recipient obtains control) or when no
future economic benefits are expected from its use or disposal. Gains or losses arising from de-recognition of an
intangible asset are measured as the difference between the net disposal proceeds and the carrying amount of
the asset and are recognised in the statement of profit or loss when the asset is derecognised.

Depreciation and amortization

Depreciation on property, plant and equipment and investment property and amortization on intangible assets is
calculated on a Written Down Value (“WDV”) basis using the rates arrived at based on the useful lives estimated by
the management. The identified components are depreciated separately over their useful lives; the remalmng
components are depreuated over the life of the prmupal asset. The Company has used the following us




ICC Realty (India) Private Limited
Notes to financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2023

(i)

(k)

The Company, based on technical assessment made by technical expert and management estimate, depreciates
the assets over estimated useful lives which are different from the useful life prescribed in Schedule I to the
Companies Act, 2013. The depreciation expense on property, plant and equipment and investment property is
recognised in the statement of profit and loss. The management believes that these estimated useful lives are
realistic and reflect fair approximation of the period over which the assets are likely to be used.

Useful Life Estimated by the Management (years)
Useful lives as per

i Schedule Il (years

Assets CoTnmerClaI Hotel Mall v )
office space
Building 58 30 58 60
Building 30 ) 30 30
facade
Plant and.| o, 20 15 15
Equipment
Electrical |, 20 10 10
Installations
Furniture
1

and Fixtures i 0 10 10
Computers | 6 6 6 3
Office 20 20 5 5
Equipment
Windmills 18 - - 22
Vehicles 10 10 - 10

The Company has used the following useful lives to provide amortization on its intangible assets. The amortisation
expense on intangible assets with finite lives is recognised in the statement of profit and loss in the expense
category consistent with the function of the intangible assets

Useful Life Estimated by the Management (years)
Assets CD'.T'merc'al Hotel Mall
office space
Computer
Software =g w0 3

Borrowing costs

Borrowing costs directly attributable to the acquisition, construction or production of an asset that necessarily takes
a substantial period of time to get ready for its intended use or sale are capitalized as part of the cost of the
respective asset. All other borrowing costs are expensed in the period they occur.

Borrowing costs consist of interest and other costs that an entity incurs in connection with the borrowing of funds.

Leases

The determination of whether an arrangement is, or contains, a lease is based on the substance of the arrangement
at the inception date. The arrangement is assessed for whether fulfilment of the arrangement is dependent on the
use of a specific asset or assets or the arrangement conveys a right to use the asset or assets, even if that right is
not explicitly specified in an arrangement.

Company as a lessee
The Company applies a single recognition and measurement approach for all leases, except for short-term leases

and leases of low-value assets. The Company recognises lease liabilities to make lease payment/ﬁ,r-
sets representing the right to use the underlying assets. @)
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U}

Right-of-use assets

The Company recognises right-of-use assets at the commencement date of the lease (i.e., the date the underlying
asset is available for use). Right-of-use assets are measured at cost, less any accumulated depreciation and
impairment losses, and adjusted for any remeasurement of lease liabilities. The cost of right-of-use assets includes
the amount of lease liabilities recognised, initial direct costs incurred, and lease payments made at or before the
commencement date less any lease incentives received. Right-of-use assets are depreciated on a straight-line basis
over the shorter of the lease term and the estimated useful lives of the assets, as follows:

» Office premises / Office Building 15 years

If ownership of the leased asset transfers to the Company at the end of the lease term or the cost reflects the
exercise of a purchase option, depreciation is calculated using the estimated useful life of the asset.

The right-of-use assets are also subject to impairment. Refer to the accounting policies in Impairment of non-
financial assets.

Lease Liabilities

At the commencement date of the |ease, the Company recognises lease liabilities measured at the present value
of lease payments to be made over the lease term. The lease payments include fixed payments (including in
substance fixed payments) less any lease incentives receivable, variable lease payments that depend on an index
or a rate, and amounts expected to be paid under residual value guarantees. The lease payments also include the
exercise price of a purchase option reasonably certain to be exercised by the Company and payments of penalties
for terminating the lease, if the lease term reflects the Company exercising the option to terminate. Variable lease
payments that do not depend on an index or a rate are recognised as expenses (unless they are incurred to
produce inventories) in the period in which the event or condition that triggers the payment occurs.

In calculating the present value of lease payments, the Company uses its incremental borrowing rate at the lease
commencement date because the interest rate implicit in the lease is not readily determinable. After the
commencement date, the amount of lease liabilities is increased to reflect the accretion of interest and reduced
for the lease payments made. In addition, the carrying amount of lease liabilities is remeasured if there is a
modification, a change in the lease term, a change in the lease payments (e.g., changes to future payments
resulting from a change in an index or rate used to determine such lease payments) or a change in the assessment
of an option to purchase the underlying asset.

Short-term leases and leases of low-value assets

The Company applies the short-term lease recognition exemption to its short-term leases of Office building (i.e.,
those leases that have a lease term of 12 months or less from the commencement date and do not contain a
purchase option). It also applies the lease of low-value assets recognition exemption to leases of office equipment
that are considered to be low value. Lease payments on short-term leases and leases of low-value assets are
recognised as expense on a straight-line basis over the lease term.

Impairment of non-financial assets

The Company assesses at each reporting date whether there is an indication that an asset may be impaired. Ifany
indication exists, or when annual impairment testing for an asset is required, the Company estimates the asset’s
recoverable amount. An asset’s recaverable amount is the higher of an asset’s or cash-generating unit’s (CGU) fair
value less costs of disposal and its value in use. The recoverable amount is determined for an individual asset,
unless the asset does not generate cash inflows that are largely independent of those from other assets or groups
of assets. Where the carrying amount of an asset or CGU exceeds its recoverable amount, the asset is considered
impaired and is written down to its recoverahle amount.

In assessing value in use, the estimated future cash flows are discounted to their present value using a pre-tax
discount rate that reflects current market assessments of the time value of money and the risks specific to the
asset. In determining fair value less costs of disposal, recent market transactions are taken i . f no such
ansactions can be identified, an appropriate valuation madel is used.
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The Company bases its impairment calculation on detailed budgets and forecast calculations which are prepared
separately for each of the Company’s cash-generating units to which the individual assets are allocated. These
budgets and forecast calculations are generally covering a period of five years. For longer periods, a long term
growth rate is calculated and applied to project future cash flows after the fifth year. To estimate cash flow
projections beyond periods covered by the most recent budgets/forecasts, the Company extrapolates cash flow
projections in the budget using a steady or declining growth rate for subsequent years, unless an increasing rate
can be justified. In any case, this growth rate does not exceed the long-term average growth rate for the industries
in which the Company operates, or for the market in which the asset is used.

Impairment losses of continuing operations are recognized in the statement of profit and loss.

(m) Inventories

(n)

(o)

(p)

Inventory of food, beverages and other supplies are valued at lower of cost and estimated net realizable value.
Cost is determined on a weighted average basis. Costs include cost of purchase including duties and taxes (other
than refundable), inward freight, and other expenditure directly attributable to the purchase.

Net realisable value is the estimated selling price in the ordinary course of business, less estimated costs of
completion and estimated costs necessary to make the sale,

Provisions

Provisions are recognised when the Company has a present obligation (legal or constructive) as a result of a past
event, it is probable that an outflow of resources embodying economic benefits will be required to settle the
obligation and a reliable estimate can be made of the amount of the obligation. When the Company expects some
or all of a provision to be reimbursed, for example, under an insurance contract, the reimbursement is recognised
as a separate asset, but only when the reimbursement is virtually certain. The expense relating to a provision is
presented in the statement of profit and loss net of any reimbursement.

If the effect of the time value of money is material, provisions are discounted using a current pre-tax rate that
reflects, when appropriate, the risks specific to the liability. When discounting is used, the increase in the provision
due to the passage of time is recognised as a finance cost.

Contingent liabilities

A contingent liability is a possible obligation that arises from past events whose existence will be confirmed by the
occurrence or non-occurrence of one or more uncertain future events beyond the control of the Company.

A contingent liability can arise for obligations that are possible, but it is yet to be confirmed whether there is
present obligation that could lead to an outflow of resources embodying economic benefits.

The Company also discloses contingent liability when it is not probable that an outflow of resources embodying
economic benefits will be required to settle the obligation or a sufficiently reliable estimate of the amount of the
obligation cannet be made.

The Company does not recognise a contingent liability but only makes disclosures for the same in the financial
statements.

Financial instruments

A financial instrument is any contract that gives rise to a financial asset of one entity and a financial liability or equity
instrument of another entity.

Financial assets

Classification
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other comprehensive income (‘FVTOCI’) or fair value through profit or loss (‘FVTPL').
Initial recognition and measurement

The classification of financial assets at initial recognition depends on the financial asset’s contractual cash flow
characteristics and the Company’s business model for managing them. With the exception of trade receivables that
do not contain a significant financing component or for which the Company has applied the practical expedient, the
Company initially measures a financial asset at its fair value plus, in the case of a financial asset not at fair value
through profit or loss, transaction costs. Trade receivables that do not contain a significant financing component or
for which the Company has applied the practical expedient are measured at the transaction price determined under
Ind AS 115. Refer to the accounting policies in section (d) Revenue from contracts with customers.

In order for a financial asset to be classified and measured at amortised cost or fair value through OClI, it needs to
give rise to cash flows that are ‘solely payments of principal and interest (SPPI)’ on the principal amount outstanding.
This assessment is referred to as the SPPI test and is performed at an instrument level. Financial assets with cash
flows that are not SPPI are classified and measured at fair value through profit or loss, irrespective of the business
model.

The Company’s business model for managing financial assets refers to how it manages its financial assets in order
to generate cash flows. The business model determines whether cash flows will result from collecting contractual
cash flows, selling the financial assets, or both. Financial assets classified and measured at amortised cost are held
within a business model with the objective to hold financial assets in order to collect contractual cash flows while
financial assets classified and measured at fair value through OCl are held within a business model with the objective
of both holding to collect contractual cash flows and selling.

Purchases or sales of financial assets that require delivery of assets within a time frame established by regulation
or convention in the marketplace (regular way trades) are recognised on the trade date, i.e., the date that the
Company commits to purchase or sell the asset.

Subsequent measurement

For purposes of subsequent measurement, financial assets are classified in three categories:
e At amortised cost
e At fair value through other comprehensive income (FVTOCI)
e At fair value through profit or loss (FVTPL)

Financial assets classified as measured at amortised cost

A financial asset shall be measured at amortised cost if both of the following conditions are met:
e the financial asset is held within a business model whose objective is to hold financial assets in order to
collect contractual cash flows and
e the contractual terms of the financial asset give rise on specified dates to cash flows that are solely
payments of principal and interest on the principal amount outstanding.

After initial measurement, such financial assets are subsequently measured at amortised cost using the effective
interest rate (‘EIR’) method, less impairment. Amortised cost is calculated by taking into account any discount or
premium on acquisition and fees or costs that are an integral part of the EIR. The EIR amortisation is included in
finance expense/ (income) in the profit and loss statement. The losses arising from impairment are recognised in
the statement of profit and loss. This category generally applies to trade receivables, security and other deposits
receivable by the company.

Financial assets classified as measured at FVTOCI

There are no financial assets which are measured at FVTOCI.
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Financial assets classified as measured at FVTPL

Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss are carried in the balance sheet at fair value with net changes in
fair value recognised in the statement of profit and loss. Such instruments are measured at fair value at initial
recognition as well as at each reporting date. The fair value changes are recognised in the statement of profit and
loss eg mutual fund. Further, the Company may make an irrevocable election to designate a financial asset as FVTPL,
at initial recognition, to reduce or eliminate a measurement or recognition inconsistency.

De-recognition

A financial asset (or, where applicable, a part of a financial asset or part of a group of similar financial assets) is
primarily de-recognised (i.e. removed from the Company’s balance sheet) when
» the rights to receive cash flows from the asset have expired, or
e the Company has transferred its rights to receive cash flows from the asset or has assumed an obligation
to pay the received cash flows in full without material delay to a third party under a ‘pass-through’
arrangement; and either (a) the Company has transferred substantially all the risks and rewards of the
asset, or (b) the Company has neither transferred nor retained substantially all the risks and rewards of
the asset, but has transferred control of the asset.

impairment of financial assets

The Company applies expected credit loss (ECL) model for measurement and recognition of impairment loss on the
following financial assets and credit risk exposure:

e  Financial assets measured at amortised cost

® Trade receivables

The Company follows ‘simplified approach’ for recognition of impairment loss allowance on trade receivables.

The application of simplified approach does not require the Company to track changes in credit risk. Rather, it
recognises impairment loss allowance based on lifetime ECLs at each reporting date, right from its initial recognition.

For recognition of impairment loss on other financial assets and risk exposure, the Company determines that
whether there has been a significantincrease in the credit risk since initial recognition. If credit risk has not increased
significantly, 12-month ECL is used to provide for impairment loss.

ECL impairment loss allowance (or reversal) recognized during the period is recognized as income/ expense in the
statement of profit and loss except for impairment loss / (gain) on financial assets measured at FVTOCI, which shall
be recognized in the OCI.

Financial liabilities

Classification

Financial liabilities are classified, at initial recognition, as subsequently measured at amortised cost or fair value
through profit or loss (‘FVTPL').

Initial recognition and measurement

Financial liabilities are recognised initially at fair value net off in the case of financial liabilities not classified as fair
value through profit or loss (‘FVTPL’), transaction costs that are attributable to the issue of the financial liability.
Financial assets and financial liabilities are recognised in the Balance Sheet when the Company becomes a party to
the contractual provisions of the instrument.

Financial liabilities at amortised cost
This is the most relevant category to the Company. The Company generally classifies interest bearing borrowings as

amortised cost using the EIR method. Gains and losses are recognised in the statement of profi
Jliabilities are derecognised as well as through the EIR amortisation process.
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(a)

(r)

Amortised cost is calculated by taking into account any discount or premium on acquisition and fees or costs that
are an integral part of the EIR. The EIR amortisation is included as finance costs in the statement of profit and loss.

Financial liabilities at FVTPL

Financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss include financial liabilities held for trading and financial
liabilities designated as such upon initial recognition. Financial liabilities are classified as held for trading if they are
incurred for the purpose of repurchasing in the near term. This category also includes derivative financial
instruments entered into by the Company that are not designated as hedging instruments in hedge relationships as
defined by Ind AS 109. Separated embedded derivatives are also classified as held for trading unless they are
designated as effective hedging instruments.

Gains or losses on liabilities held for trading are recognised in the statement of profit or loss.

Financial liabilities designated as such upon initial recognition at the initial date of recognition if the criteria in Ind
AS 109 are satisfied. For liabilities designated as FVTPL, fair value gains/ losses attributable to changes in own credit
risks are recognized in OCI. These gains/ loss are not subsequently transferred to the statement of profit and loss.
However, the Company may transfer the cumulative gain or loss within equity. All other changes in fair value of
such liability are recognised in the statement of profit and loss.

The Company has not designated any financial liability as at fair value through profit and loss.
De-recognition

A financial liability is de-recognised when the obligation under the liability is discharged or cancelled or expires.
When an existing financial liability is replaced by anather from the same lender on substantially different terms, or
the terms of an existing liability are substantially modified, such an exchange or modification is treated as the de-
recognition of the original liability and the recognition of a new liability. The difference in the respective carrying
amounts is recognised in the statement of profit and loss.

Dffsetting of financial instruments

Financial assets and financial liabilities are offset and the net amount is reported in the balance sheet if there is a
currently enforceable legal right to offset the recognised amounts and there is an intention to settle on a net basis,
to realise the assets and settle the liabilities simultaneously.

Cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents in the balance sheet comprise cash on hand, balances with banks and short-term deposits
with an original maturity of three months or less, which are subject to an insignificant risk of changes in value.

Cash equivalents are short term, highly liquid investments that are readily convertible into known amounts of cash
and are subject to an insignificant risk of changes in value.

For the purpose of the statement of cash flows, cash and cash equivalents consist of cash and short-term deposits,
as defined above, net of outstanding bank overdrafts as they are considered an integral part of the Company’s cash
management.

Provision for employment benefits

Defined contribution plans

Retirement benefit in the form of provident fund is a defined contribution scheme. The Company has no
ohligation, other than the contributions payable to the provident fund. The Company recognizes contribution

payable to the provident fund scheme as an expenditure in the statement of profit and loss,
renders the related service.
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(s)

(t)

(u)

Defined benefit plans

Post-employment benefit in the form of gratuity fund scheme is a defined benefit plan. The present value of
obligation under the scheme is determined based on actuarial valuation using the projected unit credit method
(‘PUCM’). The scheme is non-funded.

Re-measurements, comprising of actuarial gains and losses and the return on plan assets (excluding amounts
included in net interest on the net defined benefit liability), are recognised immediately in the balance sheet with
a corresponding debit or credit to retained earnings through OC! in the period in which they occur. Re-
measurements are not reclassified to the statement of profit and loss in subsequent periods.

Past service costs are recognised in the statement of profit and loss on the earlier of:
e The date of the plan amendment or curtailment and
e The date on which the Company recognises related restructuring costs

Net interest is calculated by applying the discount rate to the net defined benefit liability or asset. The Company
recognises the following changes in the net defined benefit obligation under ‘employee benefit expenses’ in the
statement of profit and loss:

e Service costs comprising current service costs, past-service costs, gains and losses on curtailments and non-
routine settlements
e Net interest expense or income
Refer Note 33 for additional disclosures relating to Company’s defined benefit plan.

Provision for compensated absences

Provision for short term compensated absences is recognised for accumulated leaves that are expected to be
utilized within a period of twelve months from the balance sheet date. Long term compensated absences are
provided for on the basis of an actuarial valuation, using projected unit credit method, as at each reporting date.
The Company recognises the entire changes in provision for compensated absences, including re-measurements
in the statement of profit and loss for the year.

Earnings per share (EPS)

Basic earnings per share are calculated by dividing the net profit or loss for the period attributable to equity
shareholders by the weighted average number of equity shares outstanding during the year,

For the purpose of calculating diluted earnings per share, the net profit or loss for the period attributable to equity
shareholders and the weighted average number of shares outstanding during the period are adjusted for the
effects of all dilutive potential equity shares.

Segment reporting

An operating segment is a component of a company whose operating results are regularly reviewed by the
Company’s chief operating decision maker (CODM) to make decisions about resource allocation and assess its
performance and for which discrete financial information is available. The Company has identified the Board of
Directors of the Company as its CODM.

Other income

Interest Income:

Interest income is accrued on a time basis, by reference to the principal outstanding and at the effective interest
rate (‘EIR") applicable. For all financial instruments measured at amortized cost, interest income is recorded using
the effective interest rate (EIR). The EIR is the rate that exactly discounts the estimated future cash W
the expected life of the financial instrument or a shorter period, where appropriate, to the net ¢
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(v) Measurement of EBITDA

The Company has elected to present earnings before interest, tax, depreciation and amortization (EBITDA) as a
separate line item on the face of statement of profit and loss. The Company measures EBITDA on the basis of profit/
(loss) from continuing operations. In its measurement, the Company does not include depreciation and
amortization expense, finance costs and tax expense.

Note 3A : Significant accounting judgements, estimates and assumptions

The preparation of the financial statements requires management to make judgements, estimates and assumptions
that affect the reported amounts of revenues, expenses, assets and liabilities, and the accompanying disclosures,
and the disclosure of contingent liabilities. Uncertainty about these assumptions and estimates could result in
outcomes that require a material adjustment to the carrying amount of asset or liability affected in future periods.

Judgements

In the process of applying the accounting policies, management has made the following judgements, which have
the most significant effect on the amounts recognised in the financial statements:

Operating lease commitments — Company as lessor

The Company has entered into commercial property leases on its investment property portfolio. The Company has
determined, based on an evaluation of the terms and conditions of the arrangements, such as the lease term not
constituting a major part of the economic life of the commercial property and the fair value of the asset, that it
retains all the significant risks and rewards of ownership of these properties and accounts for the lease contracts as
operating leases.

Estimates and assumptions

The Company based its assumptions and estimates, concerning the future and other key sources of estimation
uncertainty at the reporting date, that have a significant risk of causing a material adjustment to the carrying
amounts of assets and liabilities within the next financial year, on parameters available when the financial
statements were prepared. Existing circumstances and assumptions about future developments, however, may
change due to market changes or circumstances arising beyond the Company’s control. Such changes are reflected
in the assumptions when they occur.

Defined benefit plans (gratuity benefiis)

The cost of the defined benefit gratuity plan and the present value of the gratuity obligation are determined using
actuarial valuations. An actuarial valuation involves making various assumptions that may differ from actual
developments in the future. These include the determination of the discount rate, future salary increases and
mortality rates. Due to the complexities involved in the valuation and its long-term nature, a defined benefit
obligation is highly sensitive to changes in these assumptions. All assumptions are reviewed at each reporting date.
The parameter most subject to change is the discount rate. In determining the appropriate discount rate for plans
operated in India, the management considers the interest rates of government bonds in currencies consistent with
the currencies of the post-employment benefit obligation.

The mortality rate is based on publicly available mortality tables. Those mortality tables tend to change only at
interval in response to demographic changes. Future salary increases and gratuity increases are based on expected
future inflation rates.

Others

Certain tenants have not paid service tax charged by the Company on lease rents during the year ended March 31,
2010 and March 31, 2011 and disputed levy of service tax through ‘Retailers Association’. In said case, Hon'ble
Supreme Court has vide order dated October 14, 2011, directed the service receivers to deposit 50% of tax liability
in three installments and granted stay on balance dues and the matter is sub judice.
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Accordingly, the Company will adjust service tax liability remaining outstanding as at March 31, 2023 of Rs. 72.22
lakhs (March 31, 2022 of Rs.72.22 lakhs) with corresponding trade receivables on the basis of evidence of service
tax payments provided by tenants.”

Note 3B: New and amended standards

Amendments to Standards effective 1 April 2022

Indian Accounting Standards rules have been amended via notification dated 23 March 2022. The amendments
were applicable from 01 April 2022, but did not have a material impact on the financial statements of the Company.

* Amendments to Ind AS 101 — First-time Adoption of Ind AS

» Amendments to Ind AS 103 - Business Combination

= Amendments to Ind AS 109 — Financial Instruments

s Amendments to Ind AS 16 — Property, Plant and Equipment

» Amendments to Ind AS 37 — Provisions, Contingent Liabilities and Contingent Assets

= Amendments to Ind AS 41 — Agriculture

Amendments to Standards effective 1 April 2023

The Ministry of Corporate Affairs has notified Companies (Indian Accounting Standards) Amendment Rules, 2023
dated 31 March 2023 to amend the following Ind AS which are effective from 01 April 2023 which are not expected
to have material impact on the financial statements of the Company.

Ind AS 1 — Presentation of Financial Statements

The amendments require companies to disclose their material accounting policies rather than their significant
accounting policies. Accounting policy information, together with other information, is material when it can
reasonably be expected to influence decisions of primary users of general purpose financial statements.

ind AS 1Z - income Taxes

The amendments clarify how companies account for deferred tax on transactions such as leases and
decommissioning obligations. The amendments narrowed the scope of the recognition exemption in paragraphs 15
and 24 of Ind AS 12 (recognition exemption) so that it no longer applies to transactions that, on initial recognition,
give rise to equal taxable and deductible temporary differences.

Ind AS 8 — Accounting Policies, Changes in Accounting Estimates and Errors

The amendments will help entities to distinguish between accounting policies and accounting estimates. The
definition of a change in accounting estimates has been replaced with a definition of accounting estimates. Under
the new definition, accounting estimates are “monetary amounts in financial statements that are subject to
measurement uncertainty”. Entities develop accounting estimates if accounting policies require items in financial
statements to be measured in a way that involves measurement uncertainty
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ICC Realty (India) Private Limited
Motes to the Ind AS financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2023
{All amounts are in Rs. lakhs, unless atherwise stated)

Note 5 - properties
Freehold fand Freehold buildings Total
Deemed cost
At April 1, 2022 2,719.17 43,480.96 46,199.63
Additions - 467.91 467.91
Disposals = - -
At March 31, 2023 2,719.17 43,948.37 46,667.54
Depreciation and impairment
At April 1, 2022 - 10,589.72 10,589.72
Depreciation charge for the year 2,001.17 2,001.17
[s]i 1 - - =
At March 31, 2023 = 12,550.89 12,590.89
Net Block as at March 31, 2023 2,719.17 31,357.48 34,076.65
Investment Properties
Freehold land Freehold Buildings Total
Deemed cost
At April 01, 2021 2,719.17 42,769.83 45,489.00
Additions 2 710,63 710.63
i - - =
At March 31, 2022 2,718.17 43,480.46 46,199.63
Depreciation and impairment
At April 01, 2021 - 8,529.97 8,529.97
Depreciation charge for the yeay - 2,059.75 2,058,75
Disposals - =
At March 31, 2022 - 10,589.72 10,589.72
Net Black as at March 31, 2022 2,719.17 32,890.74 35,609.91
Note ;
1. All the immovable properties are in the name of the Company.
2. No revaluation has been done during the year with respect to Investment property.
3, Details of schedule of charge on ir ble property |s joned in Note 17.
Note 6 - [nvestment properties under develoy t
As at March 31, 2023 As at March 31, 2022
Opening Balance 3146 -
Additions 542.84 3148
Di 1 467.91 b
Closing balance 106.39 31.46
Invostment property under devel ageing schedul
As at March 31, 2023
Investment property under development Amount in IPUD for a period of Total
Less than 1 year 1-2 year 2-3 year More than 3 years
Froject in progress 10639 - - - 106.39
Projects tempararily ded - - - = -
Grand Total 106.39 - = - 106.39
Investment property under development ageing:
As at March 31, 2022
Investment property under development Amount in IPUD for a period of Total
Less than 1 year 1-2 year 2-3 year More than 3 years
Project in progress 31.46 = ~ = 3146
Projects temporarily suspended - - - -
Grand Total 31.46 - - - 31.46
Naotes

1. There is no delay in the expected project completion date,

Information regarding income and liture of Investment properties

Year ended March 31, 2023

Year ended March 31, 2022

Rental income denved from Investmant properties I0,353.46 13,531.54
Lass: Direct operating expenses arising from investment properties that §,166.25 378223
generated rental income during the year

Profit arising from investment properties before depreciation and 14,187.21 9,749.26
indirect expenses

Lass : Depreciation 2,001.17 2,059.75
Profit arising from investment properties befare indirect expenses 12,186.04 7.689.51




ICC Realty (India) Private Limited

MNotes to the Ind AS financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2023
[All amounts are in Rs. lakhs, unless otherwise stated)

Reconciliation of fair value of the properties are as under
As at March 31, 2023 As at March 31, 2022

Opening Balance 3,12,132.00 2,96,419.00

Fair valus movemant for the yaar 14,499.34 15,002.37

Capitalised during the year - 710.63

CIosinE Balance 3.26,631.34 3,12,132.00
Description of val techniques used and key inputs to praperties :

Valuation techniques Significant unobservable Range (weighted average)
inputs Asat March 31, 2023 As at March 31, 2022
Investment Property Market Method Leasable area 13,25,320 sqit 13,25,320 sgft
Rate adopted Rs, 21000-36000 per sgit  Rs. 18000-36000 par sgft

Description of valuation Method

These valuations are based on valuations performed by Siddharth 5, Thits & Associatss in the current year and Thite Valuers & Engineers Put, Ltd, in the previous year, an accredited independant
and registered valuer as defined under rule 2 of Companies {Registered Valuers and Valuation) Rules, 2017, The valuation was conducted through a market rate approach. Under this approach
the market value has besn obtzined by considering the sale ideration of the similar propertias, Under this method average rats has been obtained from various sala instances for similar
properties after adjusting various positive and negative factors associated with the property under valuation. For constructed properties depreciation market rate is taken for valuation.

Note 7 - Intangible assets

Computer software Total
Deamed Cost
At April 1, 2022 33.93 33.93
Additions = -
Disposals - -
At March 31, 2023 33.93 33.93
Amortisation and impairment
At April 1, 2022 3233 32.33
Amortisation - =
Di. it | - -
At March 31, 2023 32.33 3233
Net Black as at March 31, 2023 1.60 1.60

Intangible assets

Computer sof Tatal
Deemed Cost
At April 01, 2021 33.93 33.93
Additions - F:
Disposals - E
At March 31, 2022 33.93 33.93

isation and Imp
At 1 April 2022 32.33 3233
Amartisation = -
Disposals = 5
At 31 March 2022 3233 32.33
Not Block as at March 31, 2022 1.60 1.60
Mote :

1. Ne revaluation has besn done during the year with respect ta Intangible Assets,

[THIS SPACE I5 INTENTIONALLY LEFT BLANK]




ICC Realty (India) Private Limited

Motes to the Ind AS financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2023

{All amounts are in Rs. lakhs, unless otherwise stated)

Note 8 - Other financial assets

Non-current

Current

As at March 31, 2023 As at March 31, 2022

As at March 31, 2023

As at March 31, 2022

Unsecured, considered good

Other bank balances (refer note 148) 66.14 198.15 778.15 =
Security deposit (considered good, at amortised cost) 718.90 704.94 282.24 276.67
785.04 903.09 1,060.39 276.67
Interest accrued but not due - 6.06 177.48 22193
Other receivables = - - 126
- 6.06 177.48 223.19
Total other financial assets 785.04 509.15 1,237.87 4959.86
Note 9 - Income tax assets (net)
Non-current Current
As at March 31, 2023 As at March 31, 2022 As at March 31, 2023 As at March 31, 2022
Advance income-tax (net of provision for taxation of Rs. 2,791.48 lakhs 1,549.53 2,383.74 - -
{March 31, 2022; 1,173.10 lakhs})
Total Income tax assets (net) 1,549.53 2,383.74 - -
Note 10 - Other assets
Non-current Current
As at March 31, 2023 As at March 31, 2022 As at March 31, 2023 As at March 31, 2022
Unbilled revenue® 962.01 823.64 758.30 557.14
Unsecured, considered good
Capital advances 175.06 265.34 - =
Supplier advances - - 333.05 639.05
Dthers
Balances with government autharities - - 7.13 63.95
Prepaid expenses 241.84 53.36 197.44 179.94
Total Other assets 1,378.91 1,142.34 1,295.92 1,440.08
* The amount includes lease equalisation reserve of Rs. 1,192.51 lakhs (March 31, 2022 : Rs. 932.88 lakhs) on account of Ind AS 116.
Note 11 - Inventories (valued at lower of cost and NRV)
Current
As at March 31, 2023 As at March 31, 2022
Food beverages and other supplies 379.58 277.56
Others 16.58 5.80
Total Inventories 396.16 283.36
Note 12 - Financial assets
Current

As at March 31, 2023

As at March 31, 2022

Investment in mutual funds (fair value through profit or loss)

55,079.53 units (March 31, 2022 ; 31,892.15 units) in HDFC Overnight

Fund -Regular Plan - Growth
69,073.73 units (March 31, 2022 : NIl units) in HDFC Liquid Fund -
Regular Plan - Growth

Total Financial assets

Aggregated book value of guoted investments
Aggregated market value of quoted investments
Aggregated book value of unquoted investments
Aggregated market value of unquoted investments

1,819.00 1,000.13
3,028.18 -
4,847.18 1,000.13
4,847.18 1,000.13
4,847.18 1,000.13
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ICC Realty (Indja) Private Limited
Notes to the Ind AS financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2023
{All amounts are in Rs. lakhs, unless otherwise stated)

Note 14A - Cash and bank balances

Current
As at March 31, 2023 As at March 31, 2022

Cash and cash equivalents
Balances with banks:

— On current accounts 2,248.04 1,589.05
Cash an hand 5.85 7.42
2,253.89 1,596.47

Note 14B - Other bank balances

Non-current Current
As at March 31, 2023 As at March 31, 2022 As at March 31, 2023 As at March 31, 2022

Other bank balances

Deposits with original maturity for more than 12 months 66.14 198.15 778.15 -

Deposits with maturity for more than 3 months but less than 12 - - 3,677.99 10,304.58
manths®

66.14 198.15 4,456.14 10,304.58

Amount disclosed under financial assets (refer note 8) (66.14) {198.15) (778.15) -

- - 3,677.99 10,304.58

*Deposit kept against DSRA, bank guarantee and sinking fund of Rs. 1,827.45 Lakhs (March 31, 2022: Rs. 1,970.30 Lakhs).

Break up of financial assets carried at amortised cost

Non-current Current
As at March 31, 2023 As at March 31, 2022 As at March 31, 2023 As at March 31, 2022
Particulars
Trade receivables - - 2,395.70 1,990.03
Cash and cash equivalents - - 5.931.88 11,901.05
Other financial assets 785.04 908.15 1,237.87 499.86
Total financial assets carried at amortised cost 785.04 908.15 9,565.45 14,390.94

[THIS SPACE IS INTENTIONALLY LEFT BLANK]




ICC Realty (India) Private Limited

Notes to the Ind AS financial statements as at and for the year ended March 31, 2023
(All amounts are in Rs. lakhs, unless otherwise stated)

MNote 15 - Equity share capital

As at March 31, 2023 As at March 31, 2022

Authorised share capital
2,00,00,000 (Mareh 31, 2022: 2,00,00,000) egulty shares of Rs. 10 each 2,000.00 2,000.00

Issued, subscribed and fully paid-up share pital

1,04,43,557 {March 31, 2022: 1,07,14,000) Equity shares of Rs. 10 each fully paid 1,044.40 1,071.40
Total issued, subscribed and fully paid-up share capital 1,044.40 1,071.40
(a) Reconciliation of the shares fing at the beginning and at the end of the reporting period
Equity shares
As at March 31, 2023 As at March 31, 2022
No. of sharas No. of shares Amount
Equity shares of Rs. 10 each fully paid
At the beginning of the year 1,07,14,000 1,071.40 1,07,14,000 1,071.40
Buyback of shares [2,70,043) {27.00)
Qutstanding at the end of the year 1,04,43,957 1,084.40 1.07.14,000 1.071.40

(b) Terms/ rights attached to equity shares
The Company has only onz class of equity shares having par value of Rs. 10 per share. Each holder of enuity shares is entitled to ane vote per share. The Company has declared and paid
interim dividend during the current year. The interim dividend declared by the Baard of Directors is app 1 by the shareholders in the extra-ordinary general meeting.

In the event of liquidation of the Company, the holders of equity shares will be entitled to receive remaining assets of the Company, after distribution of preferential amounts, if any. The
distribution will be In propertion to the number of equity shares held by the sharsholdsrs.
(¢} Details of shareholders holding more than 5% shares in the Company

Equity share capital
Asat March 31, 2023 As at March 31, 2022
* holding in the class No. of shares % holding in the dass No. of shares
Name of the shareholder
Equity shares of Rs. 10 each fully paid
Pramsagar Infra Realty Private Limited 45.34% 47,35,232 45,34 % 48,57,668
BRE Asia ICC Holdings Ltd 50.00% 52,21,578 50,00 % 53,57,000

As per records of the Company, including its register of shareholders/members and ather declarations recejved from shareholders regarding beneficial intarest, the above shareholding
represents both legal and benaficial ownerships of shares,

(d) Shareholding of promoters
As at March 31, 2023

Shares held by promoters at the end of the year % Change during the
year
Promoter name No. of Shares % of total shares
Mr. Atul |, Chardia 2,55,662 2.45% -
P Infra Realty Private Limited 47,35,232 4534% -
Mr. Atul I Chardia - HUF 2,31.085 2.21% -
BRE Asia |CC Haldings Limited 52,21,978 50.00% -
Total 1,04,43,957 100.00%
As at March 31, 2022
Shares hald by promoters at the end of the year % Change during the
year
Pramoter name No. of Shares % of total shares
Mr. Atul |, Cherdia 2,62,272 2.45% -
Pr Infra Realty Private Limited 48,57,668 45.34% E
Mr. Atul |, Chordia - HUF 2,37.060 2.21% -
BRE Asia |CC Holdings Limited 53,567,000 50.00% -
Tatal 1,07,14,000 100.00%
(e) Equity shares bought back by the C during the period of five years i diately preceding the reporting date:

As atMarch 31,2023 As at March 31, 2022 As at March 31, 2021 As at March 31, 2020 As at March 31, 2019
Na. of shares No. of shares No. of shares No. of shares No. of shares
Equity shar=s bought back by the Company 2,70,043 - - 7,76,000 =

Note:

As at March 31, 2023

- The Board of Directors of the Company at its meeting held on November 16, 2022 and the shareholders by way of Special Resolution on Nevember 17, 2022, approved the buy back af the fully pald equity
shares of the face value of Rs, 10 each of the Company from its shareholder including promaters and promater group of the Company as on the record date, on a proportionate basis at a price of Rs, 2,520 per
share for ap aggregate amount not exceeding Rs. 6,805.08 lakhs. The Company completed the buy back process an Movember 21, 2022 and has complied with all the requisite formallties with Registrar of
Companies and other regulatory authorities.

-In accordance with section 62 of the Companies Act, 2013, the Company has created 'Capital Redemption Reserve’ of Rs, 27 lakhs equal ta the nominal value of the shares bought back as an appropriation
from Securities Premium Account.

As at March 31, 2020

-The Board of Directors of the Company at its meeting held on July 17, 2019 and the sharshalders by way of Special Resalution on July 18, 2019, appravad tha buy back of the fully paid equity shares of the
face value of Rs. 10 each of the Company from its shareholder including promoters and promater group of the Campany as on the record date, en a proportionate basls at a price of Rs. 1,507 per share for an
aggregate amount not exceading Rs. 11,694.32 lakhs, The Company completed the buy back process on July 22, 2019 and has cormplied with all the requisit= formalities with Registrar of Companies and other
regulatory authorities,

-In accordance with section 62 of the Companies Act, 2013, the Company has created ‘Capital Redemption Reserve’ of Rs, 77.60 lakhs equal to the nominal value of the shares bought back as an appropriation
from Securities Premium Account.




ICC Realty (India) Private Limited

Notes to the Ind AS financial statements as at and for the year ended March 31, 2023

(All amounts are in Rs. lakhs, unless otherwise stated)

Note 16 - Other equity

As at March 31, 2023

As at March 31, 2022

Securities premium
Balance as per the last financial statements
Less: Utilised towards buy back of shares
Less: Transferred to capital redemption reserve
Closing balance

Retained Earnings
Balance as per the last financial statements
Profit for the year
Less: Utilised for Dividend
Less: Tax on buy back of shares
Other comprehensive income
Net surplus in the statement of profit and loss

Capital redemption Reserve
Balance as per the last financial statements
Add: Transferred from securities premium
Closing balance

Total other equity

15,102.73 15,102.73
(6,778.08) :
(27.00) =
8,297.65 15,102.73
4,971.58 2,001.59
13,127.24 2,943.11
(9,670.06) =
(1,376.45) :
(7.19) 26.88
7,045.12 4,971.58
363.03 363.03
27.00 :
390.03 363.03
15,732.80 20,437.34

Capital redemption reserve

During financial year ended March 31, 2013, March 31, 2014, March 31, 2020 and March 31, 2023 the Company bought back its
shares and in order to comply with the requirements of the Company law, the Company has created capital redemption reserve,

Securities premium reserves

Securities premium is used to record the premiurn on issue of shares. The reserve can be utilised only for limited purposes such as
issuance of bonus shares in accordance with the provisions of the Companies Act, 2013.

[THIS SPACE IS INTENTIONALLY LEFT BLANK]




ICC Realty (India) Private Limited

Notes to the Ind AS financial statements as at and for the year ended March 31, 2023

(All amounts are in Rs. lakhs, unless otherwise stated)

Note 17 - Borrowings

Non-current

Current

As at March 31, 2023

As at March 31, 2022

As at March 31, 2023

As at March 31, 2022

Term loans from Bank (at amortised cost}

A. Indian rupee loan (secured) [refer below note 1]
B. Indian rupee loan (secured) [refer below note 2]
C. Indian rupee loan (secured) [refer below note 3]

7.50% Non-convertible redeemable debentures (at amortised cost)
NIl (March 31, 2022: 3,816) Non-convertible redeemable dehentures

[refer below note 4]

The above amount includes
Secured borrowings
Unsecured borrowings
Total Borrowings

. 241.84 - 1,779.83
29,195.54 - 833.67 -
12,015.69 = 371.83 2

: 36,669.38 i 3,208.94
41,211.23 36,911.22 1,305.50 4,988.77

41,211.23 36,911.22 1,305.50 4,988.77
41,211.23 36,911.22 1,305.50 4,988.77

The above amounts of outstanding borrowings includes interest accrued but not due of Rs. 31.77 Lakhs (March 31, 2022 : Rs. 1,874.03 lakhs).

The maturity analysis of borrowings is disclosed in note No 39,
Note 1 : Indian rupee loan

Indian rupee Term Loan carries the fixed rate of interest of 7.00% p.a { March 31, 2022 : 7.00% - 7.20%) payable monthly. The entire loan was repald on June 02, 2022 and the Company

has received No Due Certificate.

Note 2 : Indian rupee loan

Indian rupee Term Loan carries the rate of interest of 8.18% - B.95% p.a ( March 31, 2022 : Nil) payable manthly. The entire loan shall be repayable in 120 monthly instalments,
starting from September 2022, The term loan is secured by first charge over land , building & receivable pertaining to ICC Tech Park, first charge over collections generated from 1CC
Tech Park. The Campany has satisfied all debt covenants prescribed in the terms of bank loan. The Company has not defaulted on any loans payable.

Mote 3 : Indian rupee loan

Indian rupee Term Loan carries the rate of interest of 8.69% - 9.17% p.a ( March 31, 2022 : Nil) payable manthly. The entire loan shall be repayable in 120 monthly instalments,
starting from September 2022. The term loan is secured by first charge over land , building & receivable pertaining to ICC Trade Tower, first charge over collections generated fram ICC
Trade Tower . The Company has satisfied all debt covenants prescribed in the terms of bank loan. The Company has not defaulted on any loans payable.

Note 4 : 7.5% Non-convertible redeemable debentures

7.50% p.a. non-convertible redeemable debentures are issued at Rs. 10 lakhs each in August 05, 2019 and are listed at BSE on August 14, 2019 repayable in yearly instal ts in the

5 year. The Company has repaid the debentures on August 29, 2022.

The Debt was secured by a first ranking exclusive mortgage and charge in favour of the D8I Trusteeship Services Limited ('Debenture Trustee'} (for the benefit of the Secured Parties) over
the Land and Project Assets, Receivables, Insurance assets and Account Assets as more particularly defined in the Debenture Trust Deed dated 26th July 2019. The Company was given
credit rating of IND AA- with 'Stable' from India Ratings & Research India Private Limited.

Note 18 - Lease liability

Non-current Current
As at March 31, 2023 As at March 31, 2022 As at March 31, 2023 As at March 31, 2022
Lease liability 5,738.7% 5,864.86 126.07 117.46
5,738.79 5,864.86 126.07 117.46
Changes in liabilities arising from financing activities
As at March 31, 2023 As at March 31, 2022
Opening Balance of borrowings 41,899.99 44,725.87
Add:
Proceeds from borrowings 43,000.00 =
Accrual of Interest 31.77 1,874.03
Less:
Repayment of borrowings (401,613.97) (3,932.88)
Payment of interest (1,874.03) (564.43)
Impact for effective interest rate 7297 (202.60)
Closing Balance from barrowings 42,516.73 41,899.99
Mote 13 - Other financial liabilities
Non-current Current
As at March 31, 2023 As at March 31, 2022 As at March 31, 2023 As at March 31, 2022
at amortised cost
Security deposits 3,511.14 2,417.84 3,989.38 4,293.81
Employee related liakilities - - 164.06 158.31
Retention maoney - = 61.06 51.43
Payables for property, plant and equipment/investment property - - 177.56 274.74
Sinking fund™® 24577 245.77 - -
Total financial liabilities 3,756.91 2,663.61 4,392.06 4,778.29
e
g PN\
A%
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|CC Realty (India) Private Limited

Notes to the Ind AS financial statements as at and for the year ended March 31, 2023

All amounts are in Rs. lakhs, unless otherwise stated)

Note 21 - Other liabilities

Mon-current

Current

As at March 31, 2023 As at March 31, 2022

As at March 31, 2023 As at March 31, 2022

Contract liability

Deferred revenue 636.28 540,36 242.42 218.33
Advance from customers - - 387.00 733.13
Income received in advance - - 210.22 138.07
Others
Service tax payable - - 72.71 72.71
Statutory dues payable " - 122.19 214.94
Value added tax and waorks contract tax payable - - 40.14 31.42
Goods and services tax payable - - 314.31 148.01
Other liabilities = - - 40.19
636.28 540.36 1,388.99 1,596.80
Note 22 - Pr
Non-current Current
As at March 31, 2023 As at March 31, 2022 As at March 31, 2023 As at March 31, 2022
Provision for employee benefits
Provision for leave encashment 45,22 33.68 21.40 14,18
Provision for gratuity 130.78 100.40 42.53 40.36
Total provisions 176.00 134.08 63.93 54.54

[THIS SPACE IS INTENTIONALLY LEFT BLANK]




ICC Realty (India) Private Limited

Notes to the Ind AS financial statements as at and for the year ended March 31, 2023

(All amounts are Rs. in lakhs, unless otherwise stated)

Note 23 - Revenue from operations

Year ended March 31, 2023

Year ended March 31, 2022

Revenue from rental income

Revenue from contract with customers
I. Services transferred over time
From commercial leasing and mall operations
Maintenance and parking charges
Other activities incidental to commercial leasing (net)

From hotel operations
Room income

Other hotel services including banguet income and membership fees

Il. Goods transferred at a point in time

From commercial leasing and mall operations
Revenue from sale of construction materials

From hotel operations
Sale of food and beverages

From windmill operations
Revenue from windmill [net of windmill income Rs. 1,243.10 lakhs

{March 31, 2022: Rs. 871.42 lakhs) adjusted against power, fuel and
light expenses]

Total revenue from contract with customers

Total revenue from operations

Reconciliation of the amount of revenue recognised in the statement of profit & loss with the contracted price

17,796.27 11,781.76
2,302.15 1,662.28
126.53 73.69
9,626.28 3,002.10
1,985.05 770.87
14,040.01 5,508.94
80.18 27.52
80.18 27.52
10,967.82 5,339.20
197.04 259.54
11,245.04 5,626.26
25,285.05 11,135.20
43,081.32 22,916.96

Year ended March 31, 2023

Year ended March 31, 2022

Revenue as per contracted price
Adjustments

Discount

Revenue from contract with customers

25,731.38 11,548.16
446.33 412.96
25,285.05 11,135.20

Disaggregated revenue of contracts with customers

Year ended March 31, 2023

Year ended March 31, 2022

Revenue recognised over a period of time
Revenue recognised at a point of time

14,040.01 5,508.94
11,245.04 5,626.26
25,285.05 11,135.20




ICC Realty (India) Private Limited
Notes to the Ind AS financial statements as at and for the year ended March 31, 2023
(All amounts are Rs. in lakhs, unless otherwise stated)

Contract Balances of revenue with contracts with customers

Year ended March 31,2023  Year ended March 31, 2022

Balances at the beginning of the year

Trade Recievables 592.38 247.21
Contract liability - Advances from customers 286.32 308.40

Balances at the end of the year
Trade Recievables 1,4580.35 592.38
Contract liability - Advances from customers 166.80 286.32
1,657.15 878.70

Transaction price allocated to the remaining performance obligation

Year ended March 31,2023  Year ended March 31, 2022

Expected to be recognised as revenue over the next one year 166.80 286.32
Expected to be recognised as revenue beyond the next one year - 3
166.80 286.32

Note 24 - Other income

Year ended March 31,2023  Year ended March 31, 2022

Interest income on

Bank deposits 269.98 306.30
Inter corporate deposit 59.80 -
Income tax refund 74.01 -
Others 26.59 30.97
430.38 337.27

Other non operating income
Net gain on disposal of property, plant and equipment 5.86 -
Profit on sale of investment 89.61 35.13
95.47 35.13
Liabilities no longer required written back 12.07 10.24
Fair value gain on mutal unds at fair value through profit or loss 4441 0.13
Sale of SEIS License 217.49 2
Miscellaneous income 294.25 450.71
568.22 461.08
1,094.07 833.48

Note 25 - Cost of raw material consumed

Year ended March 31,2023  Year ended March 31, 2022

Cost of food and beverages consumed

Inventory at the beginning of the year 277.56 307.33
Add: Purchases 3,403.88 1,535.04

3,681.44 1,842.37
Less: Inventory at the end of the year 379.58 277.56
Cost of food and beverages consumed 3,301.86 1,564.81
Cost of Construction material sold 14.18 21.86

Total cost of sales 3,316.04 1,586.67




ICC Realty (India) Private Limited

Notes to the Ind AS financial statements as at and for the year ended March 31, 2023
(All amounts are Rs. in lakhs, unless otherwise stated)

Note 26 - Employee benefit expenses

Year ended March 31, 2023

Year ended March 31, 2022

Salaries, wages and bonus 2,483.55 2,098.34
Contribution to provident and other funds 149.81 100.80
Gratuity expenses (refer note 33) 47.61 43.79
Staff welfare expenses 298.36 207.79
Total employee benefit expenses 2,979.33 2,450.72

Note 27 - Other expenses

Year ended March 31, 2023

Year ended March 31, 2022

Open access charges 321.34 216.74
Power, fuel and light 2,337.19 1,483.52
Less: credit for energy generated by windmills (1,243.10) {871.42)
1,094.09 612.10
Rates and taxes 1,331.57 1,577.11
Insurance charges 211.15 206.12
Housekeeping expenses 836.84 371.18
Repairs and maintenance
Plant and machinery 634.03 368.84
Buildings 2,598.78 724.42
Vehicle 11.29 10.66
Others 22.40 107.08
Advertising and sales promotion 1,608.53 572.66
Travelling and conveyance 209.78 45,55
Printing and stationery 59.19 23.48
Legal and professional fees 711.33 560.79
Linen, laundry and cleaning 301.00 151.08
Internet, telephone and other operating supplies 933.89 47597
Auditors' remuneration (refer note 27.01 below) 30.84 451
Other incidental activity expenses (net) 302.67 43.62
Asset management charges 28547 237.59
Royalty fees 24472 182.51
Management fees 501.08 157.58
Security expenses 378.45 249.46
Impairment allowance (Provision for doubtful) for receivables 40.28 65.30
Loss on discarded property, plant and equipment - 25.15
Advances written off 5.44 0.01
Exchange loss (net}) 61.33 47.33
CSR Expenses (refer note 27.02 below) 88.00 130.00
Miscellaneaus expenses 47 44 86.58
Total Expenses 12,870.93 7,253.42

[THIS SPACE I5 INTENTIONALLY LEFT BLANK]




ICC Realty (India) Private Limited

Notes to the Ind AS financial statements as at and for the year ended March 31, 2023

(All amounts are Rs. in lakhs, unless otherwise stated)

27.01 Auditors' Remuneration

Year ended March 31, 2023

Year ended March 31, 2022

As auditor:

- Audit fee

- Reimbursement of expenses
- Limited review

- Others

25.78 2.50
1.07 0.11
3.50 1.50
0,50 0.40

30.84 4.51

27.02 Details of CSR expenditure:

As per Section 135 of the Companies Act, 2013, a corporate social responsibility (CSR) committee has been formed by the Company.
The areas for CSR activities are the activities mentioned in the Schedule VIl of the Companies Act, 2013. Amount spent during the year on
activities which are specified in Schedule VII of the Companies Act, 2013 are as mentioned below :

Year ended March 31,2023 Year ended March 31, 2022
(a) Amount required to be spent by the Company during the year 87.92 129.47
(b) Amount of expenditure incurred during the year 88.00 130.00
(c) Shortfall at the end of the year, - -
(d) Total of previous years shortfall, - -
{e) Reason for shortfall, NA NA
(f) Nature of CSR activities,
Educational & medical expenses 88.00 130.00

() details of related party transactions, e.g., contribution to a trust controlled
by the company in relation to CSR expenditure as per relevant Accounting
Standard,

Note 28 - Depreciation and amaortisation expense

Contribution to Panchshil
Foundation charitable trust
refer note no 36

Contribution to Panchshil
Foundation charitable trust
refer note no 36

Year ended March 31, 2023

Year ended March 31, 2022

Depreciation of property, plant and equipment (refer note 4A)

Depreciation of investment property (refer note 5)
Amortisation of intangible assets (refer note 7)

2,930.36 2,736.54
2,001.17 2,059.75
4,931.53 4,796.29

[THIS SPACE IS INTENTIONALLY LEFT BLANK]




ICC Realty (India) Private Limited

Notes to the Ind AS financial statements as at and for the year ended March 31, 2023
(All amounts are Rs. in lakhs, unless otherwise stated)

Note 29 - Finance costs

Year ended March 31,2023  Year ended March 31, 2022

Interest expenses
- on horrowing from bank 1,972.18 289.19
- on inter corporate deposit 5.98 =
- on Debentures 1,424.42 3,257.98
- financial instruments at amaortised cost 725.05 496.92
- on others 27.06 14.76
4,154.69 4,058.85
Other borrowing costs
Bank charges 4.01 1.90
4.01 1.90
Total finance cost 4,158.70 4,060.75
Note 30 - Earnings per share (EPS)
The following reflects the profit and shares data used in the basic and diluted EPS computations:
March 31, 2023 March 31, 2022
Numerator for basic and diluted EPS
Net profit after tax 13,127.24 2,943.11
Denominator for basic and diluted EPS
Weighted average number of equity shares in calculation of basic and
diluted EPS {in numbers) 106.19 107.14
Basic and diluted earnings per share of face value of Rs. 10 each
(March 31, 2022 : Rs. 10 each) 123.63 27.47

[THIS SPACE IS INTENTIONALLY LEFT BLANK]
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ICC Realty (India) Private Limited

Notes to the Ind AS financial statements as at and for the year ended March 31, 2023

(All amounts are Rs. in lakhs, unless otherwise stated)

Note 31 - Income tax

The major components of income tax expense for the years ended March 31, 2023 and March 31, 2022 are:

Statement of profit and loss section

Current income tax:

Currentincome tax charge

Adjustment for current tax of previous years

Deferred tax:

MAT credit entitlement for earlier years

Income tax expense reported in the statement of profit or loss
OCI Section:

Deferred tax related to items recognised in OCI during the year
Income tax expense reported in the statement of OCI

March 31, 2023 March 31, 2022
2,791.48 1,173.10
0.14 4.00
5 (517.62)
2,791.62 655.48
2.10 (7.85)
2.10 (7.85)

Reconciliation of tax expense and the accounting profit multiplied by India's domestic tax rate for the year ended

Accounting profit before tax

Computed tax expense

At India's statutory income tax rate of 29.12% (March 31, 2022: 29.12%)

Adjustments for:

Loss / (Income) from specified business U/s 35 AD of Income Tax Act set

off from brought forward losses

Income exempt from tax (net of expenses)

Adjustment in current tax for prior period

Impact of changing tax rate for payment under MAT

MAT credit entitlement

Deferred tax asset nat created on account of temparary difference
Other non deductible expenses for tax purpose

At the effective income tax rate of 17.54% [March 31, 2022: 18.31% ]

Income tax expense reported in the statement of profit and loss

Statement of Balance sheet section

March 31, 2023

March 31, 2022

15,918.86 3,602.59
4,635.57 1,049.08
(1,816.98) 255.55
(254.86) (182.17)
0.14 4.00
79.85 -

- (517.62)

12213 31.72
25.63 18.92
2,791.48 659.48
2,791.48 659.48

Balance sheet

Particulars
March 31, 2023 March 31, 2022

Deferred Tax Asset
Deferred income on fair valuation of security deposit 255.88 220.88
Provision for gratuity 50.47 40.99
Provision for bonus 40.89 39.32
Provision for leave encashment 19.40 13.94
Provision for bad and doubtful debts 137.65 113.51
Lease liability 1,707.85 -
Tax losses 7,644.17 7,497.77

9,856.30 7,926.40
Deferred Tax Liability
Accelerated depreciation for tax purpose (including ROU) (6,769.12) (5,179.63)
Fair valuation of security deposit (258.38) (220.93)
Non Cash impact of Borrowing (149.97) -
Fair valuation of investments in mutual fund (12.23) (0.04)
Unbilled revenue (347.26) (271.66)
Deferred tax related to OCl itermns (2.09) (7.83)

(7,539.76) (5,680.09)
Net deferred tax assets / liability 2,316.55 2,246.31

Net deferred tax assets recognised in Balance Sheet™

* In view of there being no reasonable probability for availability of sufficient future taxable income against which the deferred tax

assets as at March 31, 2023 can be realised, the same has not been recognised. Accordingly, tax asset has been recognised only to____

ent of deferred tax liability.
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ICC Realty (India) Private Limited

Notes to the Ind AS financial statements as at and for the year ended March 31, 2023

(All amounts are Rs. in lakhs, unless otherwise stated)

Tax losses and MAT credit available for set off against future taxable profits of the company are mentioned below:

Particulars 31st March 2023 31st March 2022
A Offsetting maximum — fosetting.maximum
period period
Specified Business losses 26,341 | Indefinite 25,748 | Indefinite
Minimum Alternate Tax Credit
AY.2019-20 203.74 (31st March 2034 436.61|31s5t March 2034

Deferred tax assets have not been recognized in respect of these losses and MAT credit as they may not be used to offset taxable profits and there are no other tax planning
opportunities or other evidence of recoverability in the near future. If the Campany were able to recognize all unrecognized deferred tax assets, the loss would decrease by

Rs. 7,644.16 Lakhs {31 March 2022: Rs. 7,624.91) lakhs.

The Company offsets tax assets and liabilities if and only if it has a legally enforceable right to set off currant tax assets and current tax liabilities and the deferred tax assets

and deferred tax liabilities relate to income taxes levied by the same tax authority.

[THIS SPACE IS INTENTIONALLY LEFT BLANK]




ICE Realty [India) Private Limited
Notes to the Ind AS financial statements as at and for the year ended March 31, 2023
(All amounts are Rs. in lakhs, unless otherwise stated)

Note 32 - Segment Information

(i} Revenue from hotel operations - Revenue from hotel operation comprise of revenue from sale of room, food and beverages and allied services related to hotel operation,

Including income from telecommunication and internet services.

(ii) Revenue from leasing - Revenue from leasing operations comprises of lease rentals from the properties given under lease,

(iii) Revenue from windmill - Revenue is recognised when all the significant risk and rewards of ownership have been passed ta the buyer which is usually on credit provided for

transmission of electricity based on the data provided by the Maharashtra State Electricity Distribution Company Limited in electricity bills.

Year ended March 31, 2023

Particulars C cial Leasin Hotel Windmills Eliminations Total
Revenue

External customers 20,266.80 22,627.64 197.04 - 43,091.49
Inter-segment 86.65 - 1,243.10 (1,329.75) -
Total revenue 20,353.46 22,627.64 1,440.14 (1,329.75) 43,091.49
Segment result 12,186.04 8,383.02 BEB.BS (1,329.75) 20,108.16
Segment Profit 12,186.04 8,383.02 868.85 (1,329.75) 20,108.16
Segment assets 51,922.54 17,665.29 67234 - 70,260.17
Total Assets 51,922.54 17,665.29 672.34 - 70,260.17
Segment liabilities 16,046.46 2,585.12 3.86 - 18,635.44
Total Liabilities 16,046.496 2,585.12 3.86 - 18,635.44
Depreciations 3,430.09 1,370.61 117.39 = 4,918.09
Capital Expenditure during the year 1,558.39 749.20 - - 2,308.59
Year ended March 31, 2022

Particulars C ial Leasing Hotel Windmills Eliminations Total
Revenue

External customers 13,488.89 9,168.53 259.54 - 22,916.96
Inter-segment 42.65 - 871.42 (914.07) -
Total revenue 13,531.54 9,168.53 1,130.96 (914.07) 22,916.96
Segment rasult 7,689.51 351.90 633.42 (914.07} 7,760.76
Sepment Profit 7,689.51 351.90 633.42 (914.07) 7.760.76
Segment Assets 59,441.93 17,612.37 839.39 z 77,893.69
Total Assets 59,441.93 17,612.37 839.39 - 77,893.69
Segment Liabilities 15,648.80 3,433.05 0.92 - 19,082.77
Total Liabilities 15,648.80 3,433.05 0.92 - 19,082.77
Depreciations 3,210.80 1,431.16 138.65 - 4,780.61
Capital Expenditure during the year 1,683.83 112.44 - - 1,796.27

[THIS SPACE IS INTENTIONALLY LEFT BLANK]




ICC Realty (India) Private Limited
Notes to the Ind AS financial statements as at and for the year ended March 31, 2023
(All amounts are Rs. in lakhs, unless otherwise stated)

Reconciliations to amounts reflected in the financial statements

Reconciliation of profit

March 31, 2023

March 31, 2022

Segment profit 20,108.16 7,760.76
Finance income 430.38 337.27
Other finance costs (4,158.70) {4,060.75)
Unallacated expenses (585.13) (470.24)
Unaliocated income 124.14 35.55
Profit before tax 15,918.85 3,602.59
Reconciliation of assets March 31, 2023 March 31, 2022
Segment operating assets 70,260.17 77,893.69
Tax asset {net) 1,549.53 2,383.73
Other unallocated assets 6,119.68 2,214.10
Total assets 77,929.38 82,491.51

Reconciliation of liabilities

March 31, 2023

March 31, 2022

Segment operating liabilities 18,635.44 19,082.77
Borrowings 42,516.73 40,025.99
Other unallocated liabilities 0.00 1,874.02
Total liabilities 61,152.17 60,982.78

Information about major customers

There are no customers amounting to 10% or more of the segment revenue in current year and previous yaar.

[THI5 SPACE I5 INTENTIONALLY LEFT BLANK)
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IEC Realty (India) Private Limited

Notes to the Ind AS financial statements as at and for the year ended March 31, 2023

(All amounts are Rs. in lakhs, unless otherwise stated)

Note 34 - Commitments and contingencies

a. Leases

Operating lease commitments: where the Company is the lessor

The Company has entered into operating leases on its investment property portfolio consisting of commercial space along
with interior fit-outs such as furniture and fixture, air conditioners, etc.. These leases have terms of between 1 and 5 years.

Some of the leases include a clause to enable upward revision of the rental charge on an annual basis according to

prevailing market conditions. There are no restrictions imposed by the lease agreement. Rental income recognised by the

Company during the year is Rs. 17,796.27 lakhs (March 31, 2022: Rs. 11,781.76 lakhs).

Future minimum rentals receivable under non-cancellable operating leases are, as follows:

As at March 31, 2023 As at March 31, 2022

Within one year 13,222.94 5,385.67
After one year but not more than five years 24,985.27 11,582.65
Above 5 years 153.34 190.75

b. Capital commitments

Particulars As at March 31, 2023 As at March 31, 2022
Estimated amount of contracts remaining to be 615.32 268.68
executed on capital account and not provided for
(net of advances)

c. Contingent Liabilities

Particulars As at March 31, 2023 As at March 31, 2022

Contingent Liabilities

d. Company as a lessee

The Company has lease contracts for leasehold office used in its operations. Lease of office generally have lease term of 15

years. The Company’s obligations under its leases are secured by the lessor’s title to the leased assets.

Set out below are the carrying amounts of right-of-use assets recognised and the movements during the period:

Right of Use (ROU) Asset Total
Gross Block
As at April 1, 2022 6,392.88 6,392.88
Additions w ~
Disposals - -
As at March 31, 2023 6,392.88 6,392.88
Depreciation
As at April 1, 2022 142.06 142.06
Depreciation charge for the year 426.14 426.14
Disposals : ;
As at March 31, 2023 568.20 568.20
Net Block as at March 31, 2023 5,824.68 5,824.68
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Set out below are the carrying amounts of right-of-use assets recognised and the movements as at March 31, 2022:

Right of Use (ROU) Asset Total
Gross Block
As at April 1, 2021 N 2
Additions 6,392.88 6,392.88
Disposals - 5
As at March 31, 2022 6,392.88| 6,392.88
Depreciation
As at April 1, 2021 =
Depreciation charge for the year 142.06 142.06
Disposals
As at March 31, 2022 142.06 142.06
Net Block as at March 31, 2022 6,250.82 6,250.82

Set out below are the carrying amounts of lease liabilities and the movements during t

he year:

As at March 31, 2023 As at March 31, 2022
Opening 5,982.32 -
Additions 6,124.55
Accretion of interest 438.50 149.64
Payments (555.96) (291.87)
Closing Balance 5,864.86 5,982.32
Current 126.07 117.46
Non-current 5,738.79 5,864.86
The effective interest rate for lease liabilities is 7.33%, with maturity of 2036
The following are the amounts recognised in profit or loss:

As at March 31, 2023 As at March 31, 2022
Depreciation expense of right-of-use assets 426.14 142.06
Interest expense on lease liabilities 438.50 149.64
Variable lease payments (included in other expenses) - -
Total amount recognised in profit or loss 864.64 291.70

The Maturity analysis of lease liabilities is disclosed in note No 33

Note 35 - Particulars of unhedged foreign currency exposure as at the balance sheet date

Amount in foreign

Amount in Rs.

currency
Payables (USD)
As at March 31, 2023 2.33 191.81
As at March 31, 2022 14.90 1,122.03




ICC Realty (India) Private Limited

Notes to the Ind AS financial statements as at and for the year ended March 31, 2023

{All amounts are Rs. in lakhs, unless otherwise stated)

Note 36 - Related Party Disclosures
Disclosures of transactions with Related Parties are as under:

A. Description of Related Parties
i) Name of the Related party and nature of relationship

A. Related parties where control exists

Nature of relationship

Name of the Company

Investors

Atul Chordia -HUF
Premsagar Infra Reality Private Limited

BRE Asia ICC Holdings Ltd (Earlier Known as Xander Investment
Holding XVI Limited)

B. Names of other related parties with whom transactions have taken
place during the year:

Key managerial personnel

Atul Chordia (Director)

Enterprises owned or significantly influenced by key management
personnel or their relatives or major shareholders of the Company

EON Kharadi infrastructure Private Limited

EON Hinjewadi infrastructure Private Limited
Panchshil Infrastructure Holdings Private Limited
Panchshil Corporate Park Private Limited

A2Z Online Services Private Limited

Gramercy Trade Industries Private Limited
Le-Style Enterprise Private Limited

Lifestyle Interior Private Limited

Lifestyle Interior LLP

Panchshil Realty & Developers Private Limited

P ONE Infrastructure Private Limited

Panchshil Foundation

Brightside Techpark Private Limited (Till October 31, 2022)
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C. Transactions with Related Parties

Particulars

Year ended March 31, 2023

Year ended March 31, 2022

Reimbursement of expenses
Eon Hinjewadi Infrastructure Private Limited
Panchshil Infrastructure Holdings Private Limited
Panchshil Corporate Park Private Limited
Professional fees
A2Z Online Services Private Limited
Asset Management Charges
A2Z Online Services Private Limited
Sales Of Construction Material
Lifestyle Interior LLP
CAM Income-Office Block Recovery
A2Z Online Services Private Limited
Reimbursement of expenses received or receivable
Panchshil Corporate Park Private Limited
Panchshil Infrastructure Holdings Private Limited
EON Hinjewadi infrastructure Private Limitad
EON Kharadi infrastructure Private Limited
Rental income
Le-Style Enterprise Private Limited
Unsecured loan given to
A2Z Online Services Private Limited
Gramercy Trade Industries Private Limited
Brightside Techpark Private Limited
Unsecured loan repaid from
A2Z Online Services Private Limited
Gramercy Trade Industries Private Limited
Brightside Techpark Private Limited
Unsecured loan taken from
AZZ Online Services Private Limited
Unsecured loan repaid to
A2Z Online Services Private Limited
Services received
A2Z Online Services Private Limited
Lifestyle Interior LLP
Purchase of material
Lifestyle Interiar LLP
Rent ,Rate & Taxes
Lifestyle Interior LLP
Repair & Maintenance
Lifestyle Interior LLP
Income others
Panchshil Realty & Developers Private Limited
Brolkerage Expenses
A2Z Online Services Private Limited
Interest expenses
A2Z Online Services Private Limited
Brightside Techpark Private Limited
Interest income
A2Z Online Services Private Limited
Gramercy Trade Industries Private Limited

0.71

285.47
16.65
122.85
8.96
4.23
8.44
2.30
2.77
100.00
800.00
3,500.00
100.00
800.00
3,500.00
9,700.00

9,700.00

41.63
7.52

2.88

0.01

93.67

217.49

507.61

5.98
6.04

0.03
48.25

213
2,26
10.27

118.97

237.59

61.73

7.50

597.89
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Particulars Year ended March 31, 2023 Year ended March 31, 2022

Buy Back of shares including security premium

Atul Chordia 166.57 -

Atul Chordia -HUF 150.57 -

Premsagar Infra Realty Private Limited 3,085.39 -

BRE Asia ICC Holdings Limited 3,402.55 -
Dividend

Atul Chordia 236.72 -

Atul Chordia -HUF 213.96 -

Premsagar Infra Realty Private Limited 4,384.35 -

BRE Asia ICC Holdings Limited 4,835.03 -
Roc Fees

A2Z Online Services Private Limited - 0.05
CSR Expenses (Donation)

Panchshil Foundation 88.00 130.00
Signage Income

Panchshil Infrastructure Holdings Private Limited 18.74 2.06
Room, Food & Beverage Revenue

EON Kharadi infrastructure Private Limited - 1.61

A2Z Online Services Private Limited 58.91 44.64

Panchshil Infrastructure Holdings Private Limited 0.89 62.19

Atul Chordia 4.31 x

Resham Chordia 1.30 -

Panchshil Corporate Park Private Limited 0.49 18.56
Advance for purchase of material

Panchshil Realty & Developers Private Limited - 53.55
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Balances outstanding as at year end:
Related Party Disclosures-Balance outstanding

Particulars

Year ended March 31, 2023

Year ended March 31, 2022

Receivables
A27 Online Services Private Limited
Panchshil Infrastructure Holdings Private Limited
Panchshil Corporate Park Private Limited
Le-Style Enterprise Private Limited
Eon Hinjewadi Infrastructure Private Limited
P ONE Infrastructure Private Limited
Panchshil Realty & Developers Private Limited
Lifestyle Interior LLP
Eon Kharadi Infrastructure Private Limited
Panchshil Foundation
Payahles
Atul Chordia
A2Z Online Services Private Limited
Panchshil Corporate Park Private Limited
Panchshil Infrastructure Holdings Private Limited
Lifestyle Interior LLP
Advances given
Panchshil Realty & Developers Private Limited
Security deposit given
A2Z Online Services Private Limited
Unbilled revenue
A2Z Online Services Private Limited

81.94
12.72
12.42
2.34
19.47
217.49
4.23
2.30

5.97
38.00
0.71
3.78
4.34

25.00

54.74
10.83
3.46
8.85
11.03
0.38

4.25

5.97

1.96

0.16

53.55

25.00

14.03

Transactions with key management personnel

Compensation of key management personnel of the Company

Particulars

As at March 31, 2023

As at March 31, 2022

Directors remuneration - Atul Chordia*

120.00

120.00

The amounts disclosed in the table are the amounts recognised as an expense during the reporting period related to key management

personnel.

* The remuneration to the key managerial personnel does not include the provisions made for gratuity and leave encashment, as they are

determined on an actuarial basis for the Company as a whole.
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Note 37 - Details of dues to Micro and Small enterprises as defined under MSMED Act, 2006"

Details of dues to Micro and Small enterprises

Particulars

As at March 31, 2023

As at March 31, 2022

The principal amount and the interest due thereon remaining unpaid to
any supplier at the end of each accounting year

- Principal amount due to micro and small enterprises

- Interest due on above

187.26
4.47

140.97
3.07

The amount of interest paid by the buyer in terms of section 16 of
MSMED Act, 2006, along with the amount of payment made to the
supplier beyond the appointed day during each accounting year

The amount of interest due and payable for the peried of delay in making
the payment (which has been paid but beyond the appointed day during
the year) but without adding the interest specified under the MSMED Act
2006.

3.61

6.15

The amount of interest accrued and remaining unpaid at end of each
accounting year

8.09

9.22

The amount of further interest remaining due and payable evenin the
succeeding years, until such date when the interest dues above are
actually paid to the small enterprises, for the purpose of disallowance as a
deductible expenditure under section 23 of the MSMED Act 2006

17.31

9.22
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Note 38 - Fair values

Set out below is a comparison, by class, of the carrying and fair value of the Company’s financial i as of March 31, 2023
Particulars A ised Cost F | assets/liabilities at fair|  Total carrying value Total fair value
value through profit and loss

Financial assets

Current investments - 4,847.18 4,847.18 4,847.18
Trade and other recsjvables 2,39570 - 2,395.70 2,38570
Cash and cash equivalents 2,253.89 -] 2,25389 2,253.89
Other bank balances 3,677.99 - 3,677.99 3,677.99
Other financial assets 2,02291 - 2022581 2,022.51
Total-Financial assets 10,350.2% 4,847.18 15,1597.67 15,197.67
Financial liabilities

Borrowings 42,516.73 - 42,516.73 42,516.73
Qther financial liabilities 8,14897 = 8,143,397 8,148.97
Lease liabillty 5,B64.86 | 5,864.85 5,864.86
Trade payables 2,35641 - 2,356.41 2,356.41
Total-Financial liabilities 58,886.98 - 58,886.98 58,886.98

Set out below is a comparison, by class, of the carrying

ts and fair value of the C

y's financial |

as of March 31, 2022

Particulars Amortised Cost Financial assets/liabilities at fair| Total carrying value Total fair value
value through profit and loss

Financial assets

Current investments - 1,000.13 1,000.13 1,000.13
Trade recslvables 1,920.03 - 1,990.03 1,9%0,03
Cash and cash equivalents 153647 - 1,596.47 1,536.47
Other bank balances 10,304.58 - 10,304.58 10,304, 58
Other financial assets 1,405.01 1,409.01 1,409.01
Total 15,300.09 1,000.13 16,300.22 15,300.22
Financial liabilities

Borrowings 41,899,929 41,899.99 41,859.9%
Other financial labilities 7.441.90 7.441.90 7.441.90
Lease liability 598232 - 598232 598232
Trade payables 3,332.78 - 333278 3,332.78
Total 58,656.98 - 58,656.98 5B,656.98

The fair values of the financial assets and liabilities are included at the amount at which the instrument could be exchanged in a current transaction between willing parties, ather than in a forced or

", ickati sale, The foll i B had al‘id j:
Current investments

The y's current i consist of i
measurement date,

Fair value hizrarchy

ions were used to estimate the fair values :

The following table provides the falr value messurement hierarchy aftar initial recognition:
CQuantitative disclosures fair value measurement hierarchy for assets asat March 31, 2023;

in units of mutual funds. The fair value of investments in mutual funds is derived from the NAV of the respactive units at the

Date of valuation Total Quoted prices in active | Significant observable |Significant unchservable|
markets {Level 1) inputs {Level 2) inputs (Level 3)
Assets measured at fair value
Invastmants in units of mutual funds March 31 2023 4,847.18 4,847.18 -
Assets for which fair value are disclosed
Investment property March 31 2023 3,26,631.34 - - 3,26,631.24
Quantitative disclosures fair value measurement hierarchy for assets as at March 31, 2022 ¢
Date of valuation Total Quoted prices in active | Significant observable |Significant unobservable
markets (Level 1) inputs {Level 2) inputs (Level 3)
Assets measured at fair value
Invastments in units of mutual funds March 31 2022 1,000.13 1,000.13 -
Assets for which fair value are disclosed
Investment property March 31 2022 3,12,132.00 | - 3,12,132.00

There were no transfers between leve| 1 and level 2 during the year ended March 31, 2023 and March 31, 2022,
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Note 33 - Financial instruments risk management objectives and policies

The Company's principal financial liabilitizs comprise trade pay gs 2nd security deposits. The main purpose of these fi
principal fal assets inchides | trade r and cash and cash equivalents that derive directly from its operations.

iz to finance the Company’s operations and ta support its operations. The Company's

The Company is exposed to market risk, credit risk and liquidity risk, The Board of Directors reviaws and agrees policies for managing each of these risks, which are summarised below:

Market risk

Market tisk is the risk that the fair value of future cash flows of a finandal [nstrument will fluctuats bacquse of changes In market prices, Market prices comprisa three types of risk! interest rate risk, carrency risk and other price risk
stich as equity price risk and commodity price risk. Financial instruments affectad by market rsk include borrowings and investments,

The i ¥ b in the follawing sections relate ta the position as at March 31, 2023 and March 31, 2022,

The sensitivity analysis have been prepared on the basis that the amount of net debt and the ratia of fixed-ta floating interest rates of the debt are all constant a5 at March 31, 2023 and March 31, 2022

Interest rata risk

Interest pate risk is the risk that the fsir value or future cash flows of a finandal instrument will fluctuate because of chapges in market interest rates, The Company's exposure to the risk of changes in market intarest rates relates
ly to the Campany’s long-term debt with floating interest ratas,

Interest rate sensitivity

The following table the [tivity toa bly possible change In interast rates on that portion of leans and barrowlngs affected the Company profit before tax is affected through the impact on floating rate
borrowings, as fallows:

Risk management- interest rate sensitivity Table

As at March 31, 2023 As at March 31, 2022
Increase [ decreasein | Effecton profitbefore | Increase/ decreasein | Effect an profit before
basis points tax basis points tax
Rz, +50 {197.80) +50 {218.98)
-50 197.80 -50 21295

Credit risk

Cradit risk is the risk that a counterparty will nat mest its obligations under a financial instrument or eustomer contract, leading to a financial loss. The Company Is exposed to credit risk from its eperating activities {primarily trade
receivables) and from its financing activities, including deposits with banks, if any, investmant in mutual fund and other financisl Instruments,

Trade roceivables
o credit risk Is ged by the Company's established policy, procedures and control relating to customer credit risk management, For the fixed lease Income, the billing is done fn advance |.e. at the beginning of the month and
far variable lezse rent and other maintenance charges, the credit pedod provided is of 7 to 10 days, Thus there are no major trade e bal, ding at the year and.
In case of hospitality busi, eredit risk s 1 by each busi unit subject to the Company's established palicy, pracedures and control relating to credit risk. Cradit quality of a customer is aszessed
hased on an ive credit rating | and individual credit limits are defined in accordance with this assessment. Dutstanding customer receivables are regularly menitored.
The G Y at each reparting date whether a trade recelvable or a group of trade recelvables is impaired. The Company recopnises lifetime expected credit losses Tor all trade recejvables that do not constitute @ financing
tranzaction and which are due far more than six months. The eXpected credit losses are measured at an smount equal to 12 month expected cradit lnsses or at an amaunt equal to the lifetime expected credit losses i the credit risk an
the financtzl asset has increased significantly since initfal recognition. The Company uses a practical expedient by ing the ex | eredit loss all = for trade recelvables based anay matrix.
Particulars Naot I‘Iﬁ Within 120 days*| Mora than 120 days* 'I'null
March 31, 2023
Estimated total gross carrying amount 6.498 1,972.65 B56.80 2,835.83
ECL - Simplified approach - {2.12) [438.01) [440.13)
Net carrying amount 6.38 1,970.53 418.79 2,395.70
Particulars Mot d‘ug[ Within 120 days* More than 120 days* ‘I‘ntall
March 31, 2022
Estimated total gross carrying amount 0.28 1,58545 22008 2,905,82
ECL - Simplified approach - - [415.79, [415.79)
Net carrying amount 0.28 1,585.45 404.29 1,990.03

* Provision is made for recelvables where recovery is considered doubtful irespective of due date. Whers an amount is outstanding for more than 365 days the Company usually provides for the same unless there is clear vislbility of
rECOVEry.

Foreign currency risk .
Forefgn currency risk is the risk that the falr value or future cash flows of an exposure will fluctuats because of changes in forzign exchange rates. The Company's exposure to the risk of changes in forelgn exchange rates relates
primarily to tha Campany's operating activities (when revenue or expense is denominated in a fareign currency] .

Forelgn currency sensitivity
The following tables d ate the itivity to a bly possible change in USD exchange rates, with all other varizhles hald constant. The impact on the Company's profit before tax is due to changes I the fairvalue of
mangtary assets and liabilitizs.

Pal lars as at March 31, 2023

Change in USD rate Amount
usp +5 [2.59))
-5 859

Particulars as at March 31, 2022

Change in USD rate

usn
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Liquidity risk

P ible for liguidity, funding as well as settlement
manitors the Company's net liquldity position on a monthly and quarterly basis through its Senior management

Liguidity risk is defined as the risk that the Company will not be able to ssttle or meet its obligations on ume orata price. The C: y's finance depa is
I adelith and pollees related ta such risk are by Senlor

mesting and board meetings. They use rolling forecasts on the basis of expected csh flows.

The Senior management ensures that the future cash flow neads are met through cash flow from the aperating activities and short term borrawings from banks.

The table below summarises the maturity profile of the Company’s financial liabilities based on

Risk management- Liguidity risk as at March 31, 2023

On demand| Less than 3 months| 3-12 mnlhsl 1-5 yeary More than § years| ‘I'n_tlll
As at March 31, 2023
Borrowings = 100.62 426.87 7,154.58 3494521 4262728
Securlty deposit - 3,232.46 25810 447.64 448102 8,375.23
Trade Payablas = 1,054.10 130231 - - 2,356.41
Lease Liability = 138,99 416.87 3,16855 5,130,086 9,854.57
Other financizl lizbilities ~ 156.42 327.97 - 48433
Payable to employees - 43.62 120,43 - -| 164.06
Total - 472622 2,852.66 10,770.77 45,516.29 53é55.51

Rick management- Liquidity risk As at March 31, 2022

On d J Less than 3 rnunths] 3-12 months 1-5 !ears| Iiore than 5 years| Tutﬂ
As at March 31, 2022
Barrowings | T71.40 2,34334 36,911.23 - 40,025.97
Security deposit 377072 - 52209 2,046.81 37094 6,711.65
Trade Payables - aran 2,955.01 - - 333278
Lease Lizhility - 936 83.09 530.06 5,034.80 598232
Other financal liabilities 5143 3n.oa 2,118.72 24577 2,045.85
Payable to employess - 20.34 13807 - . 15832
Total 3,823.15 1.228.82 8,165.31 40,033.597 5,405.73 58,656.99

Capital management

For the purpose of the Company's capital management, capital Includes ssued equity capital and all ather equity reserves attributable to the equity holders of the Company, The primzry objective of the Company’s capital management
and harsholder value.

is to ensure that it maintains a strong credit rating and hezlthy capital ratios in arder to support its b

The Campany [i4
the dividend ta <}

its capital

ta itin fight of changes In economic conditions and the raquirements of the fi
return capital to shareholders or issue new shares, The Company monitars the capital using gearing ratio. The Company inchdes within net debt, interast bearing loans and borrowings, less cash
and cash equivalents and short-tarm and long term deposits,

To maintain or adjust the capital structure, the Company may adjust

particulars Year ended March 31, | Year ended March 31,
2023 2022

Barrowings (Note 17) 42,516.73 41 89599
Less: cash and short-term and lang tarm deposits (Mote 144 and 148) &,776.17 12,093.20
Met debt 35,730.56 29,800,753
Equity share capital (Note 15) 1,044.40 1,071.40
Other aquity (Note 16) 15,732 80 10,437.34
Total capital 15,777.20 21,508.74
Capital and net debt 52,517.76 51,309.53
Gearing ratio 683 58%

In arder to achieve this averal| objective, the Company's capital management, amangst other things, aims to ensure that it meets financial covenants attached ta the interast-bearing loans and borrowings that define capital structure

requirements. Breaches in meeting the financlzl covenants would parmit the bank to immediately call loans and borrawings, Thers have been na b

current perod,
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MNote 40, Social Security Code

The Cade an Sacial Security 2020 (‘the Code’) relating to emplayee benefits, during the smpl
India. Further, the Ministry of Labour and Emplayment has released draft rules for the Code on November 13, 2020, However, the Eﬁmwe data from which the changes are applicable s yet to be notified and rules for quantifying
the financial impact are also not yet issued.

and p

assenton §

ber 28, 2020, The Code has beaen published in the Gazette of

The Company will assess the impact of the Code and will give appropriate impact in the financial statements In the periad in which, the Code becomes effective and the related rules to determine the finansial impact are

published,

MNota 41 : Other statutory information

i} The Company does not have any Benami property, where any proceading has been Initlated or pending against the Group for holding 2ny Benami praperty under the Benaml Transactions {Prohibition) Act, 1988 and rules made

thereunder.

i) The Company has barrowings from hanks and detalls of charge are mentianed in Note 17,

1il) The Company has not been declared wilful defaulter by any bank or i

Rk

ar

or any g

iv} The Campany has not traded or (nvested in crypto currency arvirtual currency durlng the current of previous year.
v} Therz iz no Income surrendered or disclosed as income during the currant or previous year In the tax assessments under the Income Tax Act, 1961, that has not been recorded in the books of account.

vi) The Company has not advanced or loaned or invested funds to 2ny other person(s) or entity(ies), including foreign entities |
invest in other persons or entities identified n any manner whatsoever by ar on behalf of the
company has not received any fund from any |

), includ

{s) or

] with the

that the |

£ foreign antities (Funding Party} with the

{Ultirnate B

y shall: 2. directly or indirectly lend ar

} or b. provide any guarantes, security or the |ike to or an behalf of the ultimate beneficiaries The

(wheth bone]

in writing or otherwise) that the company shall: a. directly or indirectly lend
ar invest [n other persons or entities identified in any manner whatsm:mr by or on behalf of the Funding Party (Ultimats Benefici nﬂesi or b. provide any guarantes, security or the like on behalf of the ultimate beneficaries.

viilThe Company has not lued its praperty, plant and {including right-of-use assets) or intangible assets or both during the current or pravious year.

viii) The Company has ene Core Investment Campany as a part of the Group - Premsagar Infra Realty Private Limited.

I} The Company has no with the struck off under G Act, 2013 or G Act, 1956,

MNote 42. Ratios

|Particulars Numeratar Denominator As March 31,2023 As March 31,2022 % Increase/decrease in Remarks
ratio

(@) Current ratio Current Assets Current Liabilities 167 115 45% |Ratlo has increased in FY 22-23 on account of
decrease in currant lHability due to decrease in
shat term borrowing.

(b) Debt-equity ratio Total Debt Shareholder’s Eqguity 253 185 35%|Ratio has increased in FY 22-23 onaccount of
decrease in share holders equity die to buy back
of shares and distribution of dividend.

{c) Debt service covarage ratlo Eamings for debt sarvice = |Debt service = Interest & 0,57 186 -66% |Ratio has decreased in FY 22-23 on account of

Net profit after taxes + Non-|Lease Payments + repay of 7.5% non ibled
cach Principal Repay during the year,
[} Return on equity ratio Met Profits after taxes Average Shareholder's 0.69 015 367%|Ratio hasincreased In FY 22-23 onaccount of
Equity increase in profit of the Company and decreasein
shareholders equity on account of buyback,

(e} Inventory tumover ratio Cost of goods sold = ¥ 9.72 5.26 85%|Ratio has increased [n FY 22-73 on account of
increase [

() Trade receivables turnover ratio Nat credit salss = Gross Average Trade 19.85 068 103%|Ratic has increasad in FY 22-23 is on account of

credit sales - sales return |Recsivable Increasa in operations of the C
(g} Trade payables turnover ratio Net credit purchases = Averoge Trade Payables 5.69 R 744 |Ratlo has increazed in FY 22-23 on account of
Gross credit purchases - in andt during the
urchase return year.
{h) Net capital turnover ratio Mat sales = Total sales- Warkfng capital = B.66 10.20 -35% | Ratio has decreased In FY 22-23 on account of
sales retum Current assets —Currant |incresse in currant assats and decrease in current
linbilifies fiahility.

(i} Mat profit r=tic Net Profit Het sales = Total sales- 0.30 013 1379%|Ratia hasincreased in FY 22-23 on account of

sales retumn Increase in sales of the Company.

(i) Return on capital employed Earmnings before intarest Capital Employed = 031 0.11 179%|Ratic hasincreased in 7Y 22-23 on account of

and taxes Tangible Net Worth + incraase In sales as well as a decrease in debt an
Total Debt + Defermed of repay of 7.5% Non-C bl
Tax Liability Debentures and decrease in share capital due to
buy back of shares and dividend distibution.

{le} Return on investmant Interest {Financa Incame)  |Investment 0.04 0.03 32%[Ratio has increased in FY 22-23 onaccount of

Increase in return on investment in mutual funds

[THIS SPACE IS INTENTIONALLY LEFT BLANK]




|CCRealty (India] Private Limited
Nates to the Ind AS financial statements as at and for the year ended March 31, 2023

{All amounts are Rs. in lakhs, unless otherwise stated)

MNote 43 - Comparative Financial Information
Thert ve i fal Infi la included in these financlal statements for the year ended March 31, 2022 is bazad on fi ial prapared in acc with the i din India,

including tha Indian A Ing Standards (ind AS) specified under section 133 of the Act read with the Campanies (Indian Accounting Stan dards) Aules, 2015, a5 amended, which were audited by = firm of chartered accountants
otherthan 5B CE&CO LLP.

As per our report of even date

ForSRBC&COLLP For and on behalf of the Board of Directors of
Chartered Accountants ICC Realty (India) Private Limited

Q= ,ygyf”

Atul Chordia Resham Atul Cho Simran Saluja

Director Director Company Sccretary
Membership no, 136969 [HN: 0054598 DIN: DE652039 MAN-AS4TET
Place: Istanbul Place: Banghkak Flace: Bangkok Flaca: Puns

Date : September 29, 2023 Date : September 29, 2023 Date : September Date : September 78, 2023




